SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED
EHNEEKREERAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(ABESFETMALNERQF)
(Stock code & 17X 55 : 3822)

ANNUAL REPORT

2021
F

G i AT\
i



Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Environmental, Social and Governance Report
Corporate Governance Report

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Year Financial Summary

Contents B &

AR A BT AR M
hEPHHE

T

ama
TR

==

..
ST

¥

59

70

74

85

99

100

102

103

104




Corporate Information
ANEIEFR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)

E=xg

WITES
BRI L (F/5)
BIR B 5 & (TT A8 #E)

Mr. Lau Chun Ka BIRKR e A&

Ms. Leung Lai So REHL T
Independent Non-executive Directors BAUAITES
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick T2

Mr. Chu Tak Sum KEREE

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold EXBrAE
AUDIT COMMITTEE ERERS®

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold (Chairman) EXBEE(EE)
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick T2

Mr. Chu Tak Sum KEREE
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (Chairman) T2HE(EE)
Mr. Chu Tak Sum KEREE

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold EXBrAE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 2UHR A & A&
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHEZES

Mr. Chu Tak Sum (Chairman) KEBEHREE(EE)
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick T2

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold EXBrAE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 2R A %k A
COMPANY SECRETARY NEME

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong PR
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERK

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 2R A %k A

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong PR
REGISTERED OFFICE ot it 9 =B R

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

a SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021



HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

10/F, Energy Plaza
92 Granville Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel : (852) 2332-0783

Fax : (852) 2385-0793

Website WWW.SamwoO0-group.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hong Kong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

STOCK CODE

3822

Corporate Information

NEEHR

ERABREIEERME

BB
BE

EA SR

hNsE gk B 925k

AR 01088

T E ¢ (852) 2332-0783

T%E 1 (852) 2385-0793

4k - www.samwoo-group.com

ROBFELAER

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

EERABRMBEERLSE
BEEFHFELEBERA

BB

2 KBEE1835%

A AR 6418

Z S Em
#EFOKEBESRTANEISFET
#}‘Z% nfgfﬁ&

AR Tz B FEIZEET
FEEREIT

BB LSEZHREITERAA
RERIT (BB BRQ A
RGIRITHERAF
ERIFIT(BE)BERAT
BIEIEITHR A A

% 134X 5%

3822

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT



Chairman’s Statement

EREWE

Dear Shareholders,

| present on behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) the
annual report of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

The business environment of the construction industry
has been very challenging during the year. Rolling out of
public sector projects and investments in the private sector
development have also been hampered due to the interruption
and uncertainty caused by COVID-19 epidemic. On the other
hand, this situation has pressed the government to commit
its public spending on the construction of public housing,
hospitals and other social facilities, in order to stimulate the
economy by retaining employments in the construction market.

The government’s public housing construction program has
been updated by the Housing Authority on an annual basis.
The number of flat units and locations of development are
specified. Besides, the 10-year Hospital Development Plan
and a series of other hospital development and improvement
projects are underway for the Hospital Authority to modernize
its services and meet the growing healthcare needs of the
community. We do see an increase in the number of tenders in
the last few months. Therefore, we foresee an improvement in
the business environment in the second half of 2021 and 2022.

As mentioned in the latest Policy Address 2020 delivered
by the Chief Executive, the Government will have annual
expenditure of over HK$100 billion investing in infrastructure
for the next few years. In the long-term housing strategy,
316,000 public housing units will be built on new land supply
from reclamation in Tung Chung, brownfield sites in New
Development Areas in the New Territories, partial development
of the Fanling Golf Course and site reallocation in Kowloon
East in the coming 10 years. The Government’s development
strategy also attaches great importance to iconic projects
including Energizing Kowloon East, Invigorating Island South
and Lantau Tomorrow Vision.
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The directors of the Company support the government to
expedite the implementation of public works projects and
further hope that the government can grab the good timing
to expand the infrastructure investments for the future of
Hong Kong’s development. This is vital to the sustainability of
Hong Kong as a leading international city and to tap into the
opportunities arising from the development of innovation and
technology hub in the Greater Bay Area.

Our establishment in Hong Kong for almost 30 years with job
references both in iconic public infrastructure projects and the
private development sector, as well as the commitment of our
strong management team and dedicated staff to provide quality
work and services to our customers, built up the Group’s
reputation for its excellence in expertise and experience.
These have enabled us to withstand the ups and downs in the
market that we experienced the past few decades. The Board
remains prudently optimistic about the long term prospects
of the construction market. We are confident that the Group,
as one of the most dependable contractors in the foundation
segment with an extensive range of specialised machinery
and equipment will secure more projects and participate
instrumentally in landmark projects in the future.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
for and appreciation to my fellow Board members,
the management team, all staff members, suppliers,
subcontractors and other business partners and, most
importantly, our shareholders and customers for their support.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong

23 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

The Board hereby presents the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year”/“2021”), together
with comparative figures from the previous year ended 31
March 2020 (the “Previous Year”/“2020”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Business Review

The COVID-19 has posed a threat to the global economy as
well as to the Hong Kong construction industry. There was a
sharp decrease in construction projects in Hong Kong amidst
the economic downturn caused by the pandemic which slowed
down funding of new projects in the last year. A number
of planned tenders available for bidding were delayed. The
unemployment and underemployment rate of the construction
sector in 2020 was the worst since the post-global financial
crisis in 2009, cited by industry unions.

The Group experienced a hard time especially in the first half of
the Year due to the gap period partly attributable to the delay
in the rolling out of construction projects in West Kowloon
and Kai Tak districts. Situation in the second half of the Year
improved as more construction projects had commenced
works. However, the improvement in the second half is not
enough to offset the losses in the first half of the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Group Revenue and Gross Margin

The Group’s revenue for the Year decreased 61% to HK$356
million (2020: HK$917 million). Contract revenue for the
Year dropped mainly because (a) the Hospital Expansion,
Airport Logistic Centre and Tseung Kwan O Cross Bay Link
construction projects were completed before or soon after
the commencement of the first half of the Year; but (b) the
construction works of new projects including West Kowloon
Cultural District and Kai Tak Development District projects were
scheduled in the second half of the Year.

The Group recorded a gross loss of HK$4 million (2020: gross
profit of HK$127 million) and a net loss of HK$34 million for the
Year (2020: a net profit of HK$73 million) because the Group’s
revenue dropped while overhead costs such as equipment
depreciation and labour costs did not decrease in proportion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Major Projects

As at 31 March 2021
Completion status

R2021F3A31H

E32:00 9

West Kowloon Cultural District 58%
AAXILE 58%
Kai Tak Development District 96%
BEERR 96%
Kwun Tong Commercial Building 15%
LN 15%
East Kowloon Public Housing N/A
RNBELERE il

FTEIHHAH

Expected
Completion Date

Estimated
Remaining
Contract Value

Note: The above remaining contract values were determined with
reference to internal estimates based on currently available
information, and may be subsequently revised.

West Kowloon Cultural District

This is a new project awarded in about July 2020, with contract
value of approximately HK$138 million. It is a subcontract for
bored pile works for integrated basement and underground

road of the West Kowloon Cultural District.

This project contributed to about 23% the Group’s revenue for
the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Kai Tak Development District

Two new projects in Kai Tak Development District commenced
in about mid-2020. The aggregate contract value of these two
projects is about HK$117 million. These projects consist of
bored pile works for residential development.

The two projects contributed about 32% of the Group’s
revenue for the Year.

Kwun Tong Commercial Building

This is a new project awarded in about November 2020, with
contract value of approximately HK$161 million, for bored
pile, excavation and lateral support and pile cap works of a

proposed commercial building.

This project contributed to about 7% the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

East Kowloon Public Housing

This is a new project awarded subsequent to the end of Year in
about April 2021, with contract value of approximately HK$250
million, for bored pile and pile cap works of a public housing
development.

There is no revenue contribution from this project for the Year.

Other projects

A few other projects contributed to about 38% of the Group’s
revenue for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

The Group sees signs of recovery in the construction market
especially in the public sector. As mentioned above, the
Group has been recently awarded a new contract for the
development of public housing in the East Kowloon district.
Besides, more tenders are available as compared to the last
year. The directors of the Company consider that the industry
has already ran out of the bottom. The Group foresees a better
utilisation of its machinery and labour in the latter half of the
coming year when it obtains a few more new contracts.

Investment in a property holding company

In March 2017, the Group acquired 5% equity interest in
a property holding company, Gold Champion Enterprises
Limited (“Gold Champion”). The purpose is to provide a
springboard for the Group to explore opportunities in property
investment or property development. During the Year, Gold
Champion has received enquiries from parties interested in
the land development or interested to acquire the land parcel.
Meanwhile, in view of the economic slowdown recently, Gold
Champion sees it an appropriate time to study on the feasibility
of a development plan. Accordingly, Gold Champion will keep it
open to any development proposal that is viable in view of the
persistent demands in the property market of Hong Kong.

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The Group recorded a net loss of HK$34 million for the Year
(2020: net profit of HK$73 million). The net loss for the Year
arose mainly because of the drop in revenue and the gross
loss as discussed in the section above. In addition, the
administrative expenses were relative fixed in nature. Therefore,
the overhead costs of the Group did not reduce in the same
proportion of the drop in revenue.

The Group’s financial position remains healthy, with current
ratio at 1.5 times (2020: 1.7 times) and total cash and bank
balance amounted to approximately HK$191 million (2020:
HK$210 million). Net borrowings were zero (2020: zero), with
the Group in a net cash position as at 31 March 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 11% from HK$43 million
in the Previous Year to HK$48 million for the Year. It was
mainly because of the increase in the staff costs.

Finance Income/Cost

The Group recorded a net finance income of about HK$0.01
million for the Year (2020: net finance cost of about HK$0.1
million) mainly attributable to the net cash position of the
Group. Both of finance income and finance cost decreased
during the Year mainly because the average cash balance
and the borrowings decreased after certain major projects
were completed in the first half of the Year. Besides, the bank
interest rate had been lowered during the Year.

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by
internal resources, long-term bank loans and leases. During
the Year, the Group invested approximately HK$12 million
in machinery and equipment (2020: HK$21 million). As at
31 March 2021, the Group’s capital commitments relating
to purchase of machinery and equipment was nil (2020: nil).
During the Year, save as disclosed herein, the Group did not
make any material acquisitions or disposals of assets.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had plant and equipment
of carrying amounts over HK$545 million in total, which
consisted of an extensive range of machinery and equipment
for foundation construction works. This fleet of plant and
equipment enables the Group to undertake both public and
private sector projects in order to generate revenue and profit
for the Group. The management considers that the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use of these assets are
higher than their carrying amounts and therefore no impairment
provision is necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and short-term
borrowings. During the Year, the Group had a net cash outflow
of approximately HK$3 million used in operating activities
(2020: net cash inflow of HK$13 million). Together with
short-term bank loans and overdraft facilities available, the
Group’s daily operations had been financially sound throughout
the Year.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately HK$109 million (2020: HK$181 million) and
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
1.5 times (2020: 1.7 times).

Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total cash and bank
balances amounted to approximately HK$191 million (2020:
HK$210 million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Cash and bank balances decreased mainly because of
repayment of bank borrowings in the Year and the payment
of HK$34 million final dividend relating to the year ended 31
March 2020.

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$107 million (2020: HK$119 million)
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Borrowings generally
include short-term, long-term bank loans and overdrafts
bearing floating interest rates. Of the total borrowings,
approximately HK$97 million (2020: HK$101 million) were for
short-term bank loans and bank overdrafts and approximately
HKS$7 million (2020: HK$9 million) were for the current portion
of long-term bank loans with maturity dates within 12 months.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have net gearing
(net borrowings divided by total equity), instead, it had a net
cash position (2020: same). For the purpose of calculating
the Group’s net gearing ratio, net borrowings refer to the total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
balances.

The Group’s total equity as at 31 March 2021 was
approximately HK$631 million (2020: HK$698 million).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group’s revenue, expenses, cash and bank
balances, borrowings, other monetary assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars. During the Year,
other than the purchases paid in Euros and Singapore dollars,
the Group was not exposed to any significant foreign currency
risk and had not employed any financial instrument for hedging.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2021, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to three foundation works and ancillary services
projects of the Group of approximately HK$50 million, HK$18
million and HK$7 million (2020: HK$50 million, HK$18 million
and HK$17 million), the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities. The performance bonds are expected to
be released in accordance with the terms of the respective
construction contracts.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2021, the net book amount of right-of-use
assets of nil (2020: HK$16 million) and plant and equipment
approximately HK$35 million (2020: HK$52 million) was
pledged for lease liabilities and long-term bank loans,
respectively. None of the banking facilities of the Group were
secured by the Group’s bank deposits (2020: none).
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a
pre-approved list which admission is subject to assessment
of their background (including track record, pricing, market
reputation, timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales
service) and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors consider
that we have maintained good business relationships with these
suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During the year,
there was no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to our operations. Some of them also have developed
good trading history of over years with our Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had approximately 285
(2020: 331) employees. The remuneration package we offer
to our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Our Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the ISO
14001:2004 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group had not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.
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1.

HERERRE

OUR REPORT

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

Overview

This environmental, social and governance
report (“this Report”) provides the corporate
social responsibility performance of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Group”) (HKEx
Stock Code: 03822) from 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2021. This report is in compliance with the “comply
or explain” provisions of Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (ESG Reporting
Guide) under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and contains all recommended
disclosures therein.

Scope of Reporting

This Report covers the operation of the Group’s
head office and the foundation works projects of Kai
Tak Development District (the “Kai Tak Project”) and
Hong Kong International Airport high-end logistics
centre (the “Airport Project”), being the major
construction projects of the Group during previous
reporting periods.

Feedback

Your comments and advices will help determine and
reinforce the Group’s future sustainability strategy.
In order to enable the Group to comprehensively
understand and improve the performance related to
corporate social responsibility work, we eagerly look
forward to your feedback via the following contact
information:

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited
—NEEEEAR AR
Address #if -

Tel B3% : (852) 2332-0783
Fax & : (852) 2385-0793

E-mail &F#4% : info@samwoo-group.com
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1.4. Reporting Principles

We have considered the following reporting
principles in preparing this report:

Materiality: We communicate regularly with
stakeholders to better understand their concerns
about sustainability issues that affect them.
When we examine the status quo, materiality
and disclosure of sustainability issues, we will
regularly refer to local and regional sustainability
standards and those of our peers to ensure that our
sustainability priorities and strategies are aligned
with those standards.

Quantitative: The data in the report is collected and
analyzed in accordance with relevant guidelines
and standards, such as reporting our greenhouse
gas emissions in accordance with the international
standard 1ISO14064.

Balance: The materials and cases contained in this
report are mainly derived from the statistical report,
relevant documents and internal communication
documents of the Company during the reporting
period. This Report adopts an objective and
unbiased reporting to ensure that the information
disclosed truthfully reflects the overall performance
of the Group in environmental, social and
governance aspects.

Consistency: We prepare this report in accordance
with the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide of the Stock Exchange. Where
there are any changes in the future that may affect
the comparison with previous reports, the Group
will add notes to the corresponding content of this
report.
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2.

ENGAGEMENT OF STAKEHOLDERS

We believe that sincere communication with stakeholders
is the key for the Group’s business development and
growth and is also an indispensable part of our efforts
in sustainable development. Therefore, we deeply
understand the concerns of different stakeholders
to meet their expectations and continue to improve,
and thus also enhance the Company’s management
capabilities of sustainable development and drive the
realization of the Company’s strategic objectives.

In order to better understand the stakeholders’
expectations and comments on the Group’s ESG issues,
we continuously communicate with a wide range of
stakeholders. According to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, we regularly disclose the Company’s operating
performance and project progress on the information
disclosure website designated by the Stock Exchange
(HKEXnews: www.hkexnews.hk). All disclosures
are prepared and published in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, to ensure that they are
up to date with our latest developments.

The Group communicates with its stakeholders through
the following channels:
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Key stakeholders
FEROE

Investors

REH

Customers

Employees

il
H

Suppliers

g

RIR - dERERBE

Communication channels

BEAR

The Group maintains close, transparent and efficient communication
with stakeholders through regular investor meetings, annual general
meetings, emails, investor relations hotlines, investor mailboxes and
announcements.

BATHREESZ BRREAFAS €8 REFURAGLRKREEE
BRAEELA  BFNERBRT BRMSRES -

Customers may express their opinions through email and telephone
calls. The Group will furnish appropriate feedback as soon as practicable
in case of complaints.

EPAFEEHREFBREER  EARHFER  VERRGETHEEMNED
E o

The Group will review the employment and employee welfare system
through e-mail, conference, training and annual employee performance
evaluation and strengthen employees’ awareness of occupational safety
and health through training.

BE - gz BINKEIFEEIXRRAZARIERIREIBMNGIE
WiEBEINE 8 THBEL 2 RERNEH -

The Group will achieve an open and transparent procurement policy
through e-mail, meeting, review and evaluation process.
FREE - G BRLEHERE  ERAFHBERNRBEE -
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Through internal communication, the Group has NEFERLBAEEBEE - BB
identified the following issues which are important to the HATHIEER A ASEE A HE %
sustainable development of the Group. Those issues are BEEAFZEZMNTH BYLHFED
classified as the sustainable development focuses of the Wy AANEBNEERENEEEB
Group. JEEL -

Environmental Aspects Social Aspects

RIEFME HESE

° Pollution Control ° Equal Employment

o GHEH e  THER

° Use of Resources ° Occupational Health and Safety

e ZRER e  BEREREZE

o Promoting Green Operation o Training and Development

e WBRELE e HIIER

o Protection of Rights and Interests
o HEmRE

o Supply Chain Management

o fEEHEEIR

° Quality Products

s BEEmM

° Corporate Governance

o {REARE

° Giving Back to Society

o [EIEEME
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CARE FOR THE ENVIRONMENT

Management approach and policies

The Group is committed to practicing environmental
protection and promoting sustainable development to
fulfill the social responsibilities of corporate citizens. In
order to achieve a better green life, we have formulated
multiple environmental management policies and
measures, to minimise the damage we have caused to
our environmental while making positive contribution
to the environment. We also strictly follow ISO 14001
Environmental Management System and ISO50001
Energy Management System and conduct internal and
external assessments regularly to evaluate the system
effectiveness for continuous improvement, so as to
reduce and avoid unnecessary pollution to demonstrate
our commitment on environmental management.

The Group has strictly complied with all applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations, such
as the Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Waste Disposal
Ordinance, Water Pollution Control Ordinance and
Noise Control Ordinance and there were no cases of
prosecution due to violation of the relevant environmental
protection laws during the reporting period.

3.1. Pollution Control

Waste Gas Emission

The Group has been focusing on the issue of
waste gas emission. Our main waste gas emission
is the dust generated during construction and the
emissions from the Group’s vehicles. We follow
the construction advice of the main contractors to
adopt all appropriate mitigation measures, such as
sprinkling water on dry ground to reduce blowing
dust. In addition, only a small number of private cars
in the Group are used for employees’ short-distance
transport, so there has been no significant impact
on the environment.
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[t is an indisputable fact that global warming is
getting increasingly severe. The Group has always
been concerned about issues relating to climate
change. In this regard, the Group has formulated
a series of measures to reduce emissions in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations
of the place where it operates and customer
requirements.

To reduce emissions, the Group adopted and
implemented a series of measures:

° Providing and encouraging employees to
use video and teleconferencing systems to
facilitate operation and management, in a bid
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions caused
by business trips and related transportation;

° Formulating policies on regional procurement
by prioritizing procurement from local
suppliers to reduce energy consumption and
greenhouse gas emissions due to additional
transportation processes; and

° Giving priority to environmentally-friendly
equipment, such as variable frequency air
conditioning equipment and refrigerants to
reduce damage to the ozone layer; and use
induction cooker instead of gas equipment
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Set out below are the greenhouse gas emissions of

the Group:

Type of greenhouse
gas emissions

BERESERER

Total greenhouse gas emissions
MRERBHWE

Direct emissions (Scope 1)
HiER (SE—)

Indirect energy emissions (Scope 2)
BERMEESER (BE)

Notes:

Unit
By

tCO,-e
N~ EAEIRE
tCO,-e

N k=R
tCO,-e

N =R 3

fein

3
i

il

The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance

on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange,
2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories, IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, and latest grid

emission factors;

Scope 1 includes fixed combustion emissions of diesel

oil and direct combustion emissions of diesel oil and

unleaded gasoline from mobile sources; and

Scope 2 includes indirect energy emission from purchased

electricity.

SEMAREREBHRENT :

Quantity of greenhouse
gas emissions

BERBHEKE

10,349.87

10,349.48

0.40

STE T ERB TR M AR
AR AE IR IR EES] - 20064
IPCCE R BERE/SERM
IPCCERRFHAERE - &FEH
P AT

HE 1 BIEELHRMNETREDER
Mo E MM E R E
BRIGHERR AR

HEEBRBEEE IWERERE
R
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Solid Waste Management

The Group understands that handling and disposing
of waste is the most urgent environmental problem
in Hong Kong, and knows that the large amount
of construction waste generated on construction
sites will place a heavy burden on waste disposal
facilities. Therefore, the Group promotes the waste
reduction from the source, assess production
procedures regularly, identify the source of waste
to formulate policies to reduce the generation
of hazardous waste, and facilitate recycling to
treat waste in a responsible manner. In order to
handle construction waste properly, the Group
has formulated complete construction waste
management plan for various construction projects,
including recycling, handling, transferring and
disposing of construction waste.

The hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
generated by the Kai Tak Project is collected,
handled and disposed by the main contractors.
Although we do not handle hazardous waste and
non-hazardous waste directly, we strictly comply
with the main contractors’ waste management
measures. For example, we will carry out separation
of hazardous wastes, and put them into designated
containers and storage areas separately.

For the Airport Project, the non-hazardous and
hazardous wastes generated during the project
are managed according to the waste management
plan of the project. We will separately store
hazardous waste in designated container with
appropriate labels for identification. For the disposal
of hazardous wastes, we strictly comply with
relevant laws and regulations, a licenced waste
collector would be appointed for disposal of the
hazardous waste. During the last reporting period,
no hazardous waste was generated from the Group.
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Non-hazardous wastes generated due to foundation
works for the Airport during the reporting period are
set out below:

Waste Unit
BEEY By
Non-hazardous waste tonnes
MEREZEY Mg

Reduction of wastewater discharge

The Group deeply agrees that the shortage of
water resources is a serious problem facing the
world. The Group handles sewage discharge
carefully, minimizing the impact on the surrounding
environment. The construction wastewater would
be treated at the sewage treatment tank first before
discharging into sewage drains to ensure the
compliance with the requirements of the effluent
discharge license. Meanwhile, the Group has been
promoting the concept of wastewater recycling, and
set up a sewage pool on the construction site to
treat waste water, and the treated waste water is
subsequently used for washing on-site machines,
equipment and vehicle, road spraying, and greening
and watering, so as to reduce wastewater discharge
and conserve water.

RIR - dERERBE
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3.2. Use of Resources

To make good on the Group’s promise on achieving
environmentally sustainable development, we have
formulated the code of practice and technical
guidance, which summarise our environmental
protection requirements on employees, contractors
and suppliers and provide more specific
management suggestions and measures to the
employees, to ensure all resources, including
energy, water and other natural resources, are used
in an efficient and conservative manner.

Energy conservation and consumption reduction

The Group has always been committed to
promoting the environmental protection
performance and reducing energy consumption.
For effective energy management, we have already
adopted the ISO 50001 Energy Management
System and have been certified for many years.
With this systematic management, we expect
to lower energy costs, reduce greenhouse gas
emissions and achieve the Group’s sustainable
development goals. We advocate the use of
energy-saving, efficient and environmentally-friendly
construction equipment, tools and office appliances
recommended by the state and industry. We also
adopt various energy saving measures based
on the construction requirements of the general
contractor and the developer. In addition, we
constantly update the latest news on environmental
protection to optimise existing services and reduce
environmental pollution.
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Set out below is the total energy consumption of the

Group:

Type of energy
REE

Total energy consumption
BEeRFEE

Total energy consumption density

HELRFEERE

Direct energy consumption

HEERERES

Direct energy consumption
density

EEREREETE

Including:

He

Fuel consumption

P EA

Fuel consumption density

mEERE

Indirect energy consumption

MR ES

Indirect energy consumption
density

BZERREETE

Including:

Hep:

Electricity consumption
ENHHEE

Electricity consumption density

ENEREE

yat

Unit
By

000’kWh

F1E T FL i

000'kWh/per square metre
of concrete

FEFEE,/§FH KR!
THE

000'kWh

F1E F FL i

000'kWh/per square metre
of concrete

FEFEE,/§FH KR!
THE

000'kWh

F1E T FL A

000'kWh/per square metre
of concrete

FEFTRE,§FH KRR
THAE

000'kWh

F1E T FL A

000'kWh/per square metre
of concrete

FEFTRE,§FH KRR
THAE

000'kWh

FE F I B

000'kWh/per square metre
of concrete

FEFTRE, G5 KER
THE

Note: Energy data is converted into kWh with reference to

lower calorific value. Fuel includes unleaded gasoline

and diesel.

SEmAREENT

Quantity of

energy consumption
BERMER
37,855,836.16

247.85

37,855,206.16

247.84

37,855,206.16

247.84

630.00

<0.01

630

<0.01

Brat - BERBUBZ2ZERERE
BMERTIE - e

I B UM M SO e
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Water conservation and efficiency enhancement

Water consumed by the Group is mainly sourced
from municipal pipelines, and there is no difficulty
in sourcing water. To strengthen the management
and protection of water resources, the Group
instructed the project managers to strictly control
the sewage treatment discharge and strengthen
the management of water resources, and adhere
to the objective "save water, use water wisely".
We actively promote the concept of using recycled
water on the construction sites. The construction
wastewater would be reused for water spraying for
dust reduction and for equipment cleaning after
treated by sewage treatment tank, which helps to
reduce water consumption and control pollution
simultaneously. In addition, the Group is also
committed to raising the employees' awareness
of water conservation, we publicise water
resources management measures to employees
in environmental trainings; meanwhile, the Group
also strengthens the maintenance, inspection and
management of water-consuming equipment to
avoid leakage caused by pipeline damage, thus
achieving the purpose of water conservation of the
Group.
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3.3. Green Operation

Advocating green office

RIR - dERERBE

3.3. HEEE

The Group proactively integrates environmental ANEBRBREBIES TR AL
responsibility into its daily operations. In this regard, TEATKETREFR - HitEK
we have established the green office policy and (S-S S8 NN DS P N
the management measures of green operation to EEENEIEER  UWEKSY
reduce environmental impact and the consumption RENBABERIERE - &M
of natural resources. We will continue to examine SRBRENRERNTITER
feasible strategies and measures for energy BEFNIE 16 - WS 3K F % & gE AN
conservation and look for more opportunities for TARE e o

energy conservation and carbon reduction.

Measure name

BEEE

Green Office
Sk /N

Measure details

BREAR

Adopting zoning control for lighting and air-conditioning
systems in the office
MAEHRARZEFARGERA D R

Encouraging paperless office by replacing traditional paper
documents with electronic documents
SEEAPD - NAEFXUERRERAE IR

Setting air conditioners' temperature to 25°C
FIEEFRE R25°C

Arranging for the supplier to collect toner cartridges to
minimise the production of hazardous waste

WHES LRt EREDK - RO EREEYNES
Advocating utilization of recycled paper in response to the call

for cherishing the earth’s resources

RIEEABERNERD EHIRER
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RIS HERERRE

Measure name

BEEE

Promoting Green Concepts
in the Supply Chain
EHEES S EIRE

Providing Environmental
Protection Training

RARERIE

Measure details
BERAR

All contracts entered into with suppliers contain all
requirements on environmental protection. Suppliers are
required to comply with environmental protection laws and
regulations and the standards of the Group
HERHEITNARAPEESRERENTERT  HEBLT
BRORFEEER RAEENRE

The Group will also use posters and emails from time to time
to encourage sub-contractors to comply with environmental
protection measures

AEE TR ERSHRMEF BT SB D BB ERERRER

The Group provides environmental protection training
for every new employee for them to understand the
requirements and standards of the industry and the Group on
environmental protection
AEEHERIMABNE TRHMRREI - EHMIBRBITER
AR EHBRIRRE 7 A B Sk RARAE

At day-to-day meetings, we remind and educate employees
and workers on our environmental protection efforts
EHFEZTHSREMMEEIRTAEHRRIE
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Measure name

a8

Green Purchase and
Management

mERENEE

RIR - dERERBE

Measure details
BERE

° Give priority to models that are energy efficient and low in
emissions to support environmental protection when they
meet the Company’s requirements

e HENAERAFEXREFEAT  BEREESRERNGERRDHHRE
A FFERIR

° After completion of a project, tools and equipment that are in
good condition would be transported back to the warehouse
to be used for other projects

e EIRBEHZTIZ RERFNIAKREGSWEERE I
HtTEHA

° The Group would procure materials based on the actual
needs of the project and would record the quantity used for
monitoring to prevent wastage due to lack of management

e RRIBERFTEAZRBOMHENYE  VBAENRE
B RMEARREEMNEEORE

° Regular inspections and maintenance are carried out in order
to increase energy efficiency and slow down the damage and
prolong the working life of the machineries

o  EHETHAERENERENEERRRMRIEHEEIEE - T
RIES6
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Green Construction AREm T

The major pollution source generated by the Group HWEATEEREENEIEE
is from the daily operation of construction site. To EFEHNRIRZ— BEBR
effectively control and manage as well as focusing EEHIEIEKBERELRN
on various environmental discharges, the Group SEE—E(ZEEIARIN
has in place a "Green Construction Program" B B AS BEPE - RER e TR
for control and strict monitoring. It ensures that BABRREEERENT - A
constructions are carried out in accordance ZHIEE ELABRIEHEEZEN
with relevant environmental protection laws and REFEREHR -

regulations to minimise the environmental impacts of
the project construction process on the surrounding
environment.

Site Management

T EE
Airborne dust prevention o Adopting effective dust prevention measures on site (for
bhigz1:2 example, water sprinkling, hard-paving ground, fencing,

netting and sealing)
o  REMMAEMBEEE (WEK - wEiEl - BiE - ZRE

= HEFE

° Ensuring the airborne dust control meets the requirements of
"Air Pollution Control Ordinance" and "Building Environmental
Assessment Method Plus for New Buildings”

e MEREIRSHEEGIAZED (ZEREHKED) & (FRER
F—ETERREE) ME

Noise suppression o Noise shall not exceed the requirements of the "Noise Control
[Eg=s Ordinance" and "Building Environmental Assessment Method

Plus for New Buildings"

o RFNEGHEMA (RFEHRD) R (RBRTRFTERE) RE
o Regulating and controlling noise instantly on the construction

site
o TEHE ISR TR ST BNE BS R B 42 Al
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Wastewater treatment

5K R TR

Waste management
BEEYEE

RIR - dERERBE

Site Management
TihEE

Applying for wastewater discharge permit according to the
discharge requirements

RER BN E KB 5B 57K BRI Al 7

Assigning qualified units to monitor wastewater quality
L EEBMBALEITREEKKE 8

Ensuring the wastewater discharge meets the requirements of
the "Water Pollution Control Ordinance"
HERSRBERCEER] OS2 ETHIRD) BRE

Setting a temporary storage site for waste
RIUEEYEER TS5

Conducting waste classification with clear categorization

7 RN A AR RE R AR

Hazardous solid waste is required to be classified and placed
in a confined area

BEERBEERMVAEDBKE  URBEATN

When certain amounts are stockpiled, local certified collector
is engaged to dispose of the waste

BE-EHERAAZAEHAERNBERR —EIE

Ensuring the requirement of the "Waste Disposal Ordinance"
are met

BRTE (EMEERD) WRE
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RIS HERERRE

3.4. Tackling Climate Change 3.4. FEHTIEEL

Extremely Bad Weather

The Group understands that the arrangement of
outdoor works is subject to the weather condition.
In case of bad weathers such as typhoon, heavy
rains and heat wave, the management needs to
re-deploy their manpower and take precautionary
measures, to prevent workers from being injured.
To respond to the sudden attack of bad weathers
such as typhoon, heavy rains and heat wave, the
Group will adopt corresponding measures according
to the "Guide on Safety at Work in times of
Inclement Weather" and "Code of Practice in times
of Typhoons and Rainstorms" issued by the Labour
Department, and the "Guidelines on Site Safety
Measures for Working in Hot Weather" issued by the
Construction Industry Council. For the staff works at
office, we will arrange our employees in respect of
reporting for duty and release from work according
to the "Code of Practice in times of Typhoons and
Rainstorms" released by the Hong Kong Labour
Department. In addition, the Group has formulated
an emergency response plan for environmental
issues that may be caused by chemical leakage,
typhoon, rainstorm and fire, which are listed in the
environmental plan in detail.
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4. GROWTH AND WIN-WIN 4, HREHE
4.1. Equal Employment . FERERE
Overview of the Group’s employees TEBNEEME
Gender distribution of employees
BI MRS #
M Male 8 [ Female &
Male 5 258
Female 20
Age distribution of employees
ETFRDMH
6%
[ Under 31 M Age 32-45 Il Age 46-60 [T Age 61 or above
31T 32F 455 46 E605% B1BREIA I
Under 31 315A T 16
Age 32-45 32E 455 66
Age 46-60 46 = 605% 129
Age 61 or above 61558 A _E 67
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Management approach and policies

Our business success depends on the unremitting
efforts and dedicated service of all employees. The
Group understands that recruiting, retaining and
cultivating talents will help the Group maintain its
market competitiveness. The Group endeavours to
build a working environment that features mutual
respect, harmonious coexistence and safety first;
and it also provides training courses and career
development opportunities to employees for
improving in work. We have a dedicated human
resources committee to regularly review and
improve the relevant policies, so as to ensure that
they are in compliance with local laws and industry
guidelines.

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations on remuneration and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays,
equal opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination
and other benefits, such as the "Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance", and there was no case of
violation during the period.

Equal opportunity and diversity

We implement a policy of diversity and
non-discrimination to demonstrate our
determination to create a non-discriminatory
working environment for employees and job
applicants. We ensure that each job applicant has
corresponding right, and that employees are treated
fairly and impartially in recruitment, probation
period, promotion, resignation and other aspects.
In considering the recruitment and promotion of
an employee, we refer to his/her job performance,
experience and personal ability of the employee
as the promotion criteria, and will not discriminate
against or disregard him/her on the grounds of
sex, age, marital status, family status, pregnancy,
disability, race, ethnicity or religion. Furthermore,
we also prohibit various kinds of illegal harassment
conducts, including sexual harassment, disability
harassment and racial harassment.
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Employee benefits

To attract top talents, we regularly refer to the
industry salary benchmark to ensure that we provide
competitive remuneration package. Meanwhile, we
enter into employment contracts with employees
in accordance with "Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance" to protect employees' legal rights and
interests and ensure they are entitled to paid leave,
sick leave, work-related injury leave and maternity
leave in accordance with statuary standards.
Moreover, if an employee has suffered from an injury
or died as the result of an accident at work, the
Group would pay a reasonable compensation to the
employee and their family in accordance with the
labour law. The Group’s policy is strongly against
overtime work for employees. Prescribed overtime
pay and compensatory leave would be given for
overtime work.

Meanwhile, the Group is attentive to the physical
and mental health of employees. To facilitate the
work-life balance and the physical and mental
health of employees, We host recreational activities
from time to time to help employees relieve work
pressure and to enhance employees relations, so
as to strengthen contact among employees and
enhance team cohesion.

Employee communication

Having a dedicated and committed team is essential
to the continuous prosperity of the Group. We
encourage bilateral communication between the
management and employees to build mutual trust,
increase productivity and boost staff morale. We
use different channels to inform our employees
of the latest news of the Group and collect their
opinions. Our senior management will regularly
review their suggestions and propose solutions to
the problems.
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RIS HERERRE

4.2. Occupational Health and Safety

Management approach and policies

The Group attaches great importance to the safety
of the construction sites and regards occupational
safety and health as our top priority. We strive
to create the safest and most suitable working
environment, with zero work accidents as the goal,
and implements various management measures to
prevent potential risks of occupational diseases and
industrial casualties. We have a sound mechanism
to manage issues related to occupational health
and safety, so as to enhance the overall safety
performance of construction sites. Meanwhile, we
also conduct regular inspections and assessments
of the system. During the reporting period, the
Group has passed certification of ISO 45001:2018
Occupational Health and Safety Management
System to verify the effectiveness of the system.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and
regulations on providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards, such as the “Factories and Industrial
Undertakings Ordinance”, and there was no case of
violation during the period.

Evaluation of safety risks

To identify all health and safety-related hazards
and risks, we will conduct initial inspections of
operations and site work to identify potential risk
levels and provide risk assessments for high-risk
work to develop control measures of varying
degrees. For work processes involving significant
risks, we will set targets to achieve more ideal
management results.
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In addition, the Group has formulated relevant
management and control methods regarding all
potential hazards in the office premises, which cover
electrical safety, fire safety, tripping, slipping and
falling, air quality safety, eye discomfort caused
by improper lighting, physical discomfort caused
by computer and display screen equipment, office
chemical safety, back injury and pain and office
equipment safety.

Management of site safety

The Group has also carried out a safety inspection
scheme, our Occupational Safety and Health
Committee will be responsible for monitoring the
health and safety performance while trying to
minimise the potential risks during the business
operations. We hold safety meeting each month
to review the performance of each subcontractor
in occupational safety and health and the
environmental protection, and jointly formulate
effective improvement and corrective measures.
We often remind employees of relevant safety
matters in the pre-work briefings, for high risk
jobs, the management staff would determine the
appropriate personal protective equipment for the
employees to ensure their safety. In addition to a
series of mandatory measures, we would select
and reward frontline workers who have outstanding
performance in occupational safety and health
and the environment every month; and thereby to
encourage more workers to pay attention to affairs
concerning occupational safety and health and the
environment.
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Safety training

Meanwhile, as a responsible employer, we provide
industry-related safety trainings for the employees.
All staff entering the site for work are required to
take safety guidance training courses in advance.
The safety supervisor will provide relevant trainings
including introducing safety-related laws, safety
operation guidelines, potential hazards and
emergency response at the construction sites to
enhance their awareness of safety operation. We
have also established a training allowance scheme
to subsidise staff to attend external courses
which are essential to the safety of our business
operations.

. Talent Development

Management approach and policies

We firmly believe that continuous study and
development of employees will help enhance the
value of teamwork and the professional quality
of employees, and also bring higher production
efficiency to the Group. As such, we encourage
employees to engage in life-long learning,
actively provide trainings for employees, facilitate
employees' individual development, and expect that
they can grow with the Group together.
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Training System

The Group has sponsored and provided
opportunities for employees to participate in
various trainings to enhance their knowledge and
skill, for example providing mechanical operations
training for technician trainees and sponsoring
their license examinations. Furthermore, the
Group would nominate a number of employees
to attend operations trainings, for new machine
models, provided by the manufacturers; and
would also participate in the exhibitions to visits
latest mechanical developments. Through such
programs, employees would be able to gain
more comprehensive knowledge on mechanical
operations and grasp new skKills faster to help
driving the Company’s development.

The Group has always been concerned with
managing the career development of young
junior employees. In daily operations, the Group
will arrange team leaders to provide on-the-job
training for them and arrange experienced staff
to offer practical advice to them and to share life
experiences with them. In addition, managerial staff
would attend seminars on construction industry
management or new developments, organised by
industry or professional organisations to enhance
their knowledge in management and broaden their
horizons. If a department deems it necessary,
employees may be allocated to other positions to
acquire knowledge and experience from different
fields.
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4.4, Protection of Rights and Interests 4.4, BRRE

Management approach and policies

The Group explicitly prohibits forced labor and
employment of child labor, and attaches importance
to precaution in this regard. Before any applicant
is employed, the Group will thoroughly check all
kinds of documents and files and take effective
measures to verify his/her age to ensure that the
applicant reaches the legal age for employment.
The employment contract of the Group complies
with the requirements of local laws and regulations,
which specifies the rights and responsibilities
of both parties, protects employees' due rights
and interests, prohibits any form of forced
labor, guarantees that all employees work on
a voluntary basis, and forbids the use of any
servile or contractual labor, corporal punishment,
imprisonment or threat of violence.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws
and regulations on the prevention of child labor or
forced labor, such as the “Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance”, and there was no case of violation
during the period.
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OPERATIONAL COMMITMENT 5. EERIE
5.1. Supply Chain Management 51. EEERE
Management approach and policies EHE G REE

The Group insists on establishing long-term
and stable strategic cooperative relations with
competent suppliers; and focuses on strategic
procurement to achieve common development with
suppliers based on equality and win-win.

We clearly set out requirements and standards
during the tendering and procurement processes,
and set up effective mechanisms to ensure that
both parties act in strict accordance with laws and
regulations.

Supplier selection criteria

The Group has established an internal policy
to regulate the tendering and quoting process,
which requires that detailed assessments must be
performed on suppliers and contractors to ensure
that they meet the Group’s internal requirements;
the policy covers suppliers' and contractors'
past performance, labour rights, performance in
occupational safety and health and environmental
protection, financial position and business ethics.
Moreover, all departments within the Group maintain
close communication to monitor and ensure that
the tendering and procurement process meets the
standards and is fair and transparent.
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Stringent regulation

The Group adopts a comprehensive supply chain
management mechanism, including a code of
conduct and a supplier assessment system, to
monitor and assess the performance of suppliers
in areas ranging from product and service quality
to business ethics. We will conduct regular
assessments of the suppliers' social, environmental
protection, occupational health and safety
standards to ensure that they comply with the law.
Any non-compliance may result in exclusion from
the tender list and termination of the contract.

Furthermore, the project management team of
the Group would continuously monitor the skill
and labour safety performance of the contractors,
recording the relevant inspection results for follow
up work. We would also hold regular meetings with
contractors to review the quality and speed of work
of the contractors. The Group has implemented
environmental protection and occupational,
safety and health guidelines for contractors.
These include best practices of construction and
engineering design, material selection, pollution
control. Additionally, the Group would instruct
suppliers and contractors to provide training related
to the operations of the Group’s environmental
management system.
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Sustainable development supply chain

As a responsible company, the Group not only
commits to complying with all operation-related
laws and regulations but also expects to create a
better and greener future with our supply chain.
In order to give them a clear understanding of the
Group’s commitments to social, environmental
and occupational health and safety excellence, the
Group is committed to promoting the operation
model of sustainable development through the
value chain, jointly contributing to sustainable
development with suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders. We require suppliers and contractors
to comply with the Group’s environmental
protection and occupational health and safety
policies and strict corporate governance standards.
Furthermore, we also firmly believe that all
employees in the supply chain should be free from
discrimination, and will never tolerate child labour
and forced labour practices by suppliers. We
regularly review the performance of suppliers and
contractors to ensure that they comply with relevant
regulations and continue to make improvements.
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5.2. Quality Construction 52, EHHEL

Management approach and policies

The Group has always regarded the quality of
products as the key to our business success.
Therefore, we strive to provide customers
with high-quality, healthy and safe foundation
engineering service in accordance with all applicable
laws and regulations. We have in place a complete
safety and quality management system which
enables us to prevent major accidents and provide
quality products and services to meet customer
requirements. The Group has continuously obtained
ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification.

The Group strictly abides by the laws and
regulations related to product health and safety,
advertising, labeling, remedies and intellectual
property rights protection, and also follows the
laws and regulations related to privacy, such as
the “Buildings Ordinance”. There was no case of
violation during the period.

Product safety

In order to ensure all piles meet relevant safety
standards, we conduct product testing with specific
and effective methods to make sure that our
products meet quality and technical requirements.
We have developed testing and inspection plans
for different stages of the construction project,
and run various appropriate tests on all piles in
accordance with the relevant contractual provisions
upon completion of projects; of which, quality
control tests cover a wide range of areas, including
inspection of the angle of inclination of the bored
pile, the quality of concrete and fractures, the
binding force between the concrete and rocks,
and a series of incoming quality control to ensure
the quality and safety of the product in all aspects.
The Group would also provide customers the test
reports of all piles to guarantee the stability of the
pile structure.
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Customer service

The Group is committed to becoming a
professional and reliable business partner, and
firmly believes that reliability, fairness, high quality
and transparency are the key to the success of
long-term close cooperation. In addition to serving
with care, our product services also cover quality
assurance after completion of the project. We
would, in accordance with the relevant contract
terms, be responsible for fixing any construction
defects within the warranty period. Typically,
the warranty period is within one year after the
completion of the project. In addition, we set up
multiple channels for customers to give feedback
and ensure that we can collect customers' opinions,
so as to improve product and service quality.

Protection of consumer data privacy

The Group focuses on information security and
confidentiality, all employees are required to comply
with the privacy policy regarding personal data and
Hong Kong'’s privacy ordinance to protect customer
data. The Group stands by the confidentiality clause
in the signed contract with the customers, ensuring
that the information and documents provided by the
customers would be properly stored.

Advertising and Labelling

As a responsible company, the Group understands
the importance of advertising and sales pitches.
Accordingly, our business units strictly comply with
all laws and self-discipline practices relating to the
labelling and promotion of products and services. In
addition, we regularly review management approach
to make sure that the publicity information is timely
and accurate and complies with relevant laws and
regulations.
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5.3. Corporate Governance 5.3. (bFERE

Management approach and policies

The Group firmly believes that fairness, honesty
and integrity are important business assets.
We will never tolerate any forms of corruption,
including bribery and solicitation, fraud, and money
laundering. As such, to create and maintain an
ethical corporate culture, we have formulated
regulations on professional ethics in economic and
business activities, requiring business partners
to sign a commitment letter of cooperation unit,
regulating their companies and business personnel
to abide by the provisions of professional ethics,
and jointly maintaining a "simple, transparent, clean
and fair" partnership.

The Group strictly abides by relevant laws and
regulations on the prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, such as the
“Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”, and there was no
case of violation during the period.

Preventive regulation

In order to prevent any conflict of interests, we
have established conflict of interests mechanism,
and employees should first make a statement to
the board of directors through reporting channels.
We have also formulated fair, open and impartial
procedures for product or service procurement
or tendering to inhibit any potential corruption. In
addition, the Group engages independent auditors
to audit the Group’s financial statements, to
ensure that the Group’s accounts are correct and
to strengthen financial oversight to protect the
interests of shareholders.
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Whistle-blowing procedures

As a part of anti-corruption measures, we have
established a reporting system, and have developed
relevant policies to effectively implement internal
monitoring and risk management. The policies
provide reporting guidelines and channels for
employees, and help increasing employees'
alertness towards fraud, corruption and other
misconduct.

Giving Back to Society

With the mission of giving back to the society and
the philosophy of "taking from the society and giving
back to the society", the Group fully understands
that our responsibility not only lies in our direct
contribution to social economy, but also includes
the influence and effect of our business operation
and public welfare projects on the whole society.
The Group actively contacts community groups
with similar corporate responsibility concepts as the
Group to understand the needs of the community.
In order to fulfill its duty as a corporate citizen
and serve the community, the Group donated to
more than 10 different charitable institutions and
community organizations in the past year. In the
future, we will continue to look for more non-profit
organisations of different types to collaborate with,
expecting to bring benefits to more people.
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W&

5.5. Award and Achievement

Award and achievement name

R\ RHEE

ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification
ISO 14001 ERIREIRHE R RE

ISO 50001 Energy Management System Certification
ISO 50001 8E IR E I8 KR &

ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System Certification
ISO 45001 BB E R LT 2B RRE

%

ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification
ISO 9001 mE B KRE
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ERBIIRE  HEREABERES

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE #Zi|

INDEX

A ENVIRONMENTR & ChapterZ

Aspect A1 Emissions 3.1 Pollution Contro

EBmE A1 E2 358 3. 5

KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 3.1 Pollution Control

EIEAAA YRR TE KR R AR B R B R 3.5

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse 3.1 Pollution Control
gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

EIE A2 BHiE (SE) ke REZ (BE2) REREENE (AMEETE) 31538
R(n@ER) BRE (WA BES SN  BERETE) -

KPI' A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 3.1 Pollution Control
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

EIZ A3 FEAAEEEYAESE (ANE) X (WER) BE (MAEE  3.1)53R%H
B SEREHH) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where 3.1 Pollution Control
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

EE A4 ESEEEEYAES (ANE) X (WER)BE (MAEGE 3.153%H
BB SEREHH) -

KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to 3.1 Pollution Control
achieve them.

EIE A5 HAFEI VM E B R R REIE LB EMEKMN LR - 3.5

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes 3.1 Pollution Control
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.
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A ENVIRONMENTER 15 ChapterZ i
Aspect A2 Use of Resources 3.2. Use of Resources
fEm A.2 ERER 32.EAER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. 3.2. Use of Resources
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in’000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
EIE A2 REANESHEER SHEEERR(NE - fR3oB) BFEE (L 32.ZAER
TERTESAHE) REE (MUAGESEN -  §ERETE) o
KPI' A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of No record as project
production volume, per facility). water is provided by the
general contractors
IR A2.2 BEKEREE (WABEEEN  BERMETH) ° TRERAKSEBEARRER
R B2 ARk
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps 3.2. Use of Resources
taken to achieve them.
B2 A2.3 HMPAEI VR E AN EERERAEIELERMAERNYN 32.5ZAEBR
KPI'A.2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water 3.2. Use of Resources
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
EIE A2.4 HHSKEGE AR EA B A EE - KERAFTVMAKEER  32.5ABR
BERAEIEL R RTINS -
KPI'A.2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in 3.2. Use of Resources
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
EIZ A2.5 A mAAEEMHNEE (UEAE) R(MER)BEEE 32.FERER
b & -
Aspect A.3 The Environmental and Natural Resources 3.8. Green Operation
EmE A3 BRERKXAER 3B EE
KPI'A.3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the There were no
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to accidents that have a
manage them. significant impact on
the environment and
natural resources during
the period
51 A.3.1 MM EBEHHRERRAERNEAZELCEKNERE HARBHRRLRA
AT ENTTE - BERNEBEBAZENEW
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A ENVIRONMENTER 5 ChapterEZ i
Aspect A.4 Climate Change 3.4. Tackling Climate
Change
BE A4 RIRE 1 3.4 EHRIREL
KPI'A.4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which 3.4. Tackling Climate
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and Change
the actions taken to manage them.
1% A4.1 BRI EHBRITAEERENEARRIGHEBER 3.4 EERIRE (L
NEHTE -
B Social#t & ChapterE i
Aspect B.1 Employment 4.1. Equal Employment
B B.1 EE 41.FERR
KPI'B.1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, 4.1. Equal Employment
full- or part- time), age group and geographical region.
1% B.1.1 IR ERER (MEBEFE)  FhRANLMREHDH 41.T7FER
EEHEE -
KPI B.1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 4.1. Equal Employment
geographical region.
EE B.1.2 RIR - FiER MEE DHEE MK X - 41 FERERE
Aspect B.2 Health and Safety 4.2. Occupational
Health and Safety
[EmE B.2 REEZE 42 BERRELT S
KPI B.2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of  There were no work-
the past three years including the reporting year. related fatalities for
the past three years
including the reporting
period
51% B.21 BE=F (BRERFE)SFRAITHRNHABRL R - BEREHANBE=
FAREEAITHEMH
KPI B.2.2 Lost days due to work injury. There were 335 man-
days lost due to work-
related injuries during
the reporting period
EIE B.2.2 EIEEAIERS - WEHANHLAFI3LEAKXR

AITEEARIIERR
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B Socialtt & ChapterZ
KPI B.2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 4.2. Occupational
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored. Health and Safety
1% B.2.3 RMPTERANBREREL 25 URBBATRERS J42BXEREZSE
A o
Aspect B.3 Development and Training 4.3. Talent
Development
[Em B.3 R RE 4.3 NAER
KPI B.3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 4.3. Talent
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle Development
management).
#51% B.3.1 RUERREEEMN (WESRERE FREBE)EAI>NZI 43 ATEE
EEBDL -
KPI B.3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 4.3. Talent
gender and employee category. Development
E1E B.3.2 RURREEBRFIE D  BREETKEIIN TR - 4.3 ANT R
Aspect B.4 Labour Standards 4.4, Protection of
Rights and Interests
[EmE B.4 BT RA| 4.4 BRI
KPI B.4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to 4.4. Protection of
avoid child and forced labour. Rights and Interests
518 B.4.1 MR REEMEREABRE T REHET - 4.4 FERIRIE
KPI B.4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when There was no case of
discovered. violations during the
period
51% B.4.2 R IR E R B NROER G RIS P ERER A 58 - HARBERBENR
Aspect B.5 Supply Chain Management 5.1. Supply Chain
Management
[EHE B.5 rEEEE 51 MHEBEEIR
KPI B.5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 5.1. Supply Chain
Management
1% B.5.1 mriEE SN HERHA - 5.1 fEEE R
KPI B.5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 5.1. Supply Chain
number of suppliers where the practices are being Management
implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.
1518 B.5.2 ML ERARERHEERNES MERTERAENHERS 51 HERER

B ARBERTRERTE -
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B Socialit & ChapterZ i
KPI B.5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 5.1. Supply Chain
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored.
#51% B.5.3 il SRR G ERENIRE It @RERNEN - Ak 51 HERERE
HEARITRERAE -
KPI B.5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally 5.1. Supply Chain
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, Management
and how they are implemented and monitored.
151Z B.5.4 M EREHERREECZARRERRREHNED - AKRE 51 HERER
BT RERGE -
Aspect B.6 Product Responsibility 5.2. Quality
Construction
[EH B.6 EmEE 5.2.8EMT
KPI B.6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to No products were
recalls for safety and health reasons. recalled for safety and
health reasons during
the period
1% B.6.1 EERCEXERBEEPRAZ2ERREAMARNKNEY HAREEREZRHE
Lt e i BRI e i 78 [B1 4y
KPI B.6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received There were no
and how they are dealt with. products- and service-
related complaints
during the period.
1518 B.6.2 EEEREREREORFBBENAREH L - HA 930 R A B 2E m e
BR 5 B$25F
KPI B.6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting 5.2. Quality
intellectual property rights. Construction
518 B.6.3 it g RIREMBEREANEA - 5.2.BEMT
KPI B.6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall 5.2. Quality
procedures. Construction
#E1F B.6.4 Mt E 8T @EREMDKERF - 5.2.BE T
KPI B.6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, 5.2. Quality
and how they are implemented and monitored. Construction
5% B.6.5 HIUEEEERRERALBEE  ARBERITRERSGE . b.2.E8EHET
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B Socialit & ChapterZ i
Aspect B.7 Anti-corruption 5.8. Corporate
Governance
fEm B.7 R&S 5.3.10 %818
KPI B.7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  There were no
brought against the issuer or its employees during the corruption lawsuits
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases. during the period
518 B.7.1 REBZARNEBHITAXEEEREVEEANESHFLARY HAKRBETHFARNG
BB B KRR -
KPI B.7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing 5.8. Corporate
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored. Governance
518 B.7.2 TP & R B MER - URBERITRERTE- 5.3.1b %818
KPI B.7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff.
¥E1E B.7.3 HitmESFRETRENREGE -
Aspect B.8 Community Investment 5.4. Giving Back to
Society
fEm B.8 HERE 5.4.OIfEtt[@
KPI B.8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 5.4. Giving Back to
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Society
1% B.8.1 EIEREE (WHE BEEHEH SIFR #BF b  s54.EHEHR
®g5) -
KPI B.8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.  5.4. Giving Back to
Society
$51% B.8.2 EEIHBMBAER(NEENERE) - 5.4. Bt
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2021.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.
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THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 70 to 73 in this annual
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management.
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to
the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The directors have been made fully aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors has been appointed on specific term of three years.
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles
of association of the Company provides that every director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible for re-election by the shareholders.
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Board meetings

The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31
March 2021, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors
attended these meetings, at which business development,
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed.

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2021, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made up
of three independent non-executive directors including Mr. Ip
Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman),

Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

Professor Wong Sue Cheun,

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2021, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, internal control review report and continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020, and have a private meeting with external auditor
without the presence of the management; and the unaudited
interim financial information of the Group for the six months

ended 30 September 2020.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible for
annually reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience),
making recommendations on proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of four members including Professor
Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman), Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, being independent non-executive
directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive director.
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The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merit, and candidates are considered against various
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business operations and environment as
well as the industry in which the Company operates. The
nomination committee will continuously monitor and review
the implementation of this policy and the progress towards
achieving the measurable objectives.

The Board currently comprises 6 male and 1 female directors
with different age, educational background, skills and
experience. The nomination committee considers that our
directors have extensive experience in different fields and
professions that are relevant to the Company’s business, which
enable them to provide valuable and relevant insights to the
Board.

The nomination committee is responsible for the development
and implementation of the nomination policy which aims at
setting out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company; ensuring that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensuring the
Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the following criteria should be considered: character and
integrity; qualifications; measurable objectives in achieving
Board diversity; independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules; potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board; time commitment; and such other perspectives that are
appropriate to the Company’s business and succession plan.
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The nomination committee will conduct regular review on
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
policy and where appropriate, make recommendations
on changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and business needs. Upon receipt of the
proposal of appointment of new director and the biographical
information of the candidate, the nomination committee should
evaluate such candidate based on the objective criteria it has
set forth to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. For directors standing for re-election, the
nomination committee will review the contribution of the retiring
director and the level of participation and performance on the
Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management of the Group and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy for approval by the Board. It is made
up of four members including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman),
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold,
being independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, an executive director.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market
conditions. Details of the remuneration paid to the directors
and the other five highest paid employees are set out in notes
30(a) and 7(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser to
conduct annual review on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year and reported their
findings and recommendations to the audit committee and the
Board. It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key
internal control measures are carried out appropriately and
are functioning as intended. During the year, risk assessment
and management, overall management controls, purchase and
expenditure cycle, fixed assets cycle and financing cycle were
reviewed and found that adequate controls are in place.
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For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO45001 and ISO 50001 to ensure that the Group’s services
meet the requisite health and safety, quality and environmental
requirements. During the year, the Group passed the audits
conducted by external consultants and renewed these
certificates. Upon completion of pile construction, the Group is
required to engage external professionals to conduct various
applicable tests on all piles based on the relevant contractual
requirements and ensure full compliance with customer
requirements. Subject to these piling records available to the
customers for their testing and inspection, the authorised
persons employed by the customers certify the value of the
works completed in the payment certificates issued to the
Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and monitoring
systems have already been embedded in the daily operations
of the foundation works business.

The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance
risks or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt
with in a proper manner, while significant issues are reported
back to the Board for their attention. The Company also
compiles monthly reports to the Board (including independent
non-executive directors) to update the latest financial
performance, position and prospects of the Group.
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The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company will publish voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system at its Board meeting
on 23 June 2021, including its financial, operational and
compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Board’s review included a consideration of the internal
control evaluations conducted by the executive management,
the findings of the external auditors during the annual audit
and the internal control review reported by an internal control
adviser engaged by the Company. There was no material
fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board from all
these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied that the
risk management and internal control systems were in place
and implemented effectively during the year without significant
weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2021
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.6 million (2020: HK$1.7 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.3 million (2020: HK$1.4 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2021. No fees were paid for
non-audit services to the independent auditor during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 85 to 98 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 73 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.
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If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to
the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at
the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional
documents of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2021.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market to
ensure they have the available information reasonably required
to make informed assessments of the Group’s strategy,
operations and financial performance. The annual shareholders’
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. In addition,
the Company’s website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains
extensive company information which is easily accessible.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio. The Board considers a number of factors in
declaration and payment of dividends, including the financial
condition, results of operation and level of cash; statutory
and regulatory restrictions; future prospects and any other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. The Board
has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company to the extent that the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserve for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 78, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development
of the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation
process, research and development and formulation of overall
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved
in the foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother
of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of
Ms. Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 69, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 67, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of
Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of
Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 74, is an executive director. She
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for
the administrative and human resources management of
the Group. She obtained a diploma in smaller company
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
July 1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and
Mr. Lau Chun Ka.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 76, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor's degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
mathematics from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is
a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and Chevalier dans
I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of France, and elected
as a member of the European Academy of Sciences. Professor
Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of
BExcellent Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1775) and
G&M Holdings Limited (stock code: 6038), which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 44 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited.
He had been an independent non-executive director of Henry
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 859) until February 2018.

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a Master of Arts degree
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip is chairman
of Altus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8149), which group
companies focus on providing corporate finance services
to listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong, as well as
property investments.
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Mr. lp is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224), Pak Fah Yeow
International Limited (stock code: 239), and Icicle Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8429), each of which is a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip worked for
Standard Chartered Asia Limited and was a director of Yuanta
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited thereafter until January 2001,
specializing in a range of corporate finance and advisory
activities for companies based in Hong Kong and China. From
1984 to 1988, he worked at Arthur Andersen & Co in London
specializing in taxation and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
in 1988.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 66, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of the
Group. He obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute
resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the construction industry
both locally and abroad. He is a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Ho Ting Leung, Robin, aged 65, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
managing, supervising and actuating the current projects of
the Group. He has over 35 years of experience, working in
the construction industry, since graduated in 1981 from Civil
Engineering Department of Hong Kong Polytechnic.

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EREABRA EMAREERREES
BBAT (PR : 224) AL HBEEAE
AR (MRS 239) MkE & BT
BRRAF (BPDRYE : 8429) KB IENIT
BE o EAADHNET (M) BRARME
B REEZE2001F1ABTRES (F
BIERARIZES  FXRHREMNE
MARSECENEREMER - A1084
FE1988F  EEERBAZLEREAR]
I8 EFURERE T WN1088F &
SRS ETRI A4S o

aREERE

HERLE 665 RILEMOEAK
2o REEAEEMETENNEREE
BRMEBER RERBEEETFE R
20034 @ WESEBWHARME N FE
ORBE LB - FREETERAEB
5FAM N BINER - HAKRB AT
MMEahadETRMEgees -

AIEREL  655% A EIPA BB
B HBEAEEZEPHNIRBEENE
B BENHESHIIE - B1981FEXERA
BIETERIATREE  HRBETE
BHESE 2 K8 -



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 57, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 47, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’'s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 54, is the company secretary
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Chartered Governance Institute, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
an accredited mediator of The Hong Kong Mediation Centre.
He has over 25 years company secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and principal risks of the Group for
the year are included in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual report.

The environmental policies and relationships with key
stakeholders are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Further details of the above are
included in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

on page 99 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
208 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to about HK$20,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2021,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$200 million (2020: HK$201 million).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No shares were issued in the years ended 31 March 2021
and 2020. Details of share capital are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 March 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of the shares on the offer date of the relevant option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick
Mr. Chu Tak Sum
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Ms. Leung Lai So and
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Directors' Report

EEEHRE

FEEMRANBETMERERRBIEBRRT
RN FRIR AT B AV IR R BB A
R RN B B AR B R 1T 2 B0 e BB
BE -

RN B B A B R B 1.008

JC ©

TEEHEFSET  ERNEABERT A
BERATRSE : (@B XX EEER
RENAH(ARRFZR)ZELNEHRE
2P RA D ROU T (B ¢ (b)B 3P B A
MEREZOAHMEEXZBEHNE
B (B R TR 1) F R (E ¢ R (c)Bx
DREEEREEOEHNEE -

Zat BN B IR T FHRES -

B=

REFEERERRE BRI RAFES
m -

HITES

BRI L (F/E)
BIRB S A& (7T AR E)
FIRR ST E
RE#HZ LT

BYIFEAITES

Fir2HE
REBRELE
E PN P2

RBARAABERADRFAM - BIRE
T RBHIZEIMNIHEHEENERE
BRBFAGLER ATEERERE
fE o

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT



Directors' Report

EEEWRE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 70 to 73.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares
Name of director of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)

EsnA

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 1,200,000,000

BIRAEE

Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000

REHLL

(b) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the
Company:

Name of associated

Name of director ~ corporation

BEEpg HEEE SR ROEE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
BERARE 615

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
IRALE 10,0008
Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
REHIT 61

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares

REHZL 10,000

Fifs 8 REE0.00258 THEBRHE (FR)

Number of shares
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Percentage of
shareholding Capacity
ERESL 5

71.43% Founder of a discretionary trust

EHEETMNEIRA

71.43% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust
2REENZREA

(b) AR F R A 2

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity
HRESL )
100% Founder of a discretionary trust

SRETNAIRIA

100% Founder of a discretionary trust
2RIEFENEIHEA

100% Beneficiary of a
discretionary trust

PRERNIEA
100% Beneficiary of a discretionary

trust
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So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2021 the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(c)  Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in
the Company:

Number of ordinary shares of

Name of shareholder HK$0.0025 each held
Fr¥E R E{E0.002558 T Y

BRREHE EBEREA

Actiease Assets Limited Long position 1,200,000,000

4¥7%&1,200,000,000/%

Silver Bright Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
#f%£1,200,000,0000%

Managecorp Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
as trustee of a unit trust #f%£1,200,000,0000%
(EREMERNXTA)

SW AA Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000
#¥%21,200,000,000%

Notes:

1. 1,200,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets
Limited, a company wholly owned by Silver Bright Holdings
Limited which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Leung Lai So is the beneficiary.

2. As at 31 March 2021, Silver Bright Holdings Limited was
100% held by Managecorp Limited as trustee of a unit
trust, of which issued units were 100% held by SW AA
Holdings Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust set up
by Mr. Lau Chun Ming.

3. On 24 June 2021, Managecorp Limited transferred the
entire issued share capital of Silver Bright Holdings Limited
to SW AA Holdings Limited to effect a distribution of trust
asset under the unit trust. After such transfer, Silver Bright
Holdings Limited is now 100% held by SW AA Holdings
Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. Lau Chun Ming.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

In addition, the Company requested and obtained the
information of the companies owned by the controlling
shareholders of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors, based on their review of the confirmation, noted that
no engagement in competing business had been reported by
the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2020; and there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the undertakings being
questionable.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 79% (2020: 98%) of
the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 23% (2020: 51%) of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 62% (2020: 52%) of
the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 19% (2020: 44%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 27 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

Connected Transaction

On 27 July 2020, Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation Limited
and Sam Woo Engineering Equipment Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, as tenants, entered into new
tenancy agreements with the landlords, to renew the leases of
premises for a term of 2 years from 1 August 2020 to 31 July
2022 (both days inclusive).

Each of these landlords is a private company owned by either
one or a combination of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun
Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun Ka, Ms. Leung Lai So, each of whom a
Director, and Ms. Lau Pui Shan, a director of Sam Woo Bore
Pile Foundation Limited. Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai
So together have approximately 71.43% interests in the issued
share capital of the Company.

The aggregate values of the right-of-use asset to be
recognised by the Group under these lease agreements were
estimated to be approximately HK$8,304,000, being the
present value of the aggregate lease payments using the rate
applicable at the commencement date of these new tenancy
agreements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 16 issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

One or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the estimated value of the right-of-use assets to be recognised
by the Group under these new tenancy agreements are more
than 0.1% and less than 5%. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under these new tenancy agreements constitute
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 20 July 2020 for details.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions that did not constitute connected transactions
made during the year is disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BBALRS

AEBRAFEITLNEARBZIZER
IR RAR 27 - BEBKEEFHER
BRXHNRS > MAKBEERLTR5E
STEMRAMBERE

202057 A278 » AR a2 ENB R A
M EAR AR R =ZFMERAER A A
(ERME)BEEIIIUMAERE  BY
¥CHMEEE2F - H2020F8A1HEER
2022 7RAB1B L (BIEEREMK) °

EEBEETHAEILARA  BEIRAL
A BIREISE A BIRR o E KRB
T AR RARES) RETHAZ+ (=
MHEEBRARZER)EP - UL
MALTFT#HE -2RBEERPEHL
TR ARBEBHTRAFEEEFL
71.43% 7 ©

RZEHERFE T AEEE TRRAZE
AEEENBEREN 4 48,304,000
7L BRBEEBG T ASEHENE SN
EREEREIHEARTEEHERLR
AfERAZEBRAEZHENRBEZE
@ °

ZEMHEBBRBE T AEER THERZE
AEEENGHTEEZEY —BHZEE
BAEDHERBBEOI%E D HR5% o A I
REFEAEGERET ZZER LT
RABETUAZFENBER S - BEET
15 B2 HARXT BEA2020F7 A20H
H)RE o

R ESCREEIN - MFERELOL TEK
FREXZNERNBBA L ZHERYH
WK 27T HEE -



MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2021, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$195 million
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.116 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2021 and as at the date of
this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group
had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate in all material respects.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors.
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EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 31 March 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION
GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 99 to 207, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are
summarised as follows:

° Accounting for construction contracts

° Estimated useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment

Key Audit Matter
BERETSE

Accounting for construction contracts

Refer to Note 2.17 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, Note 4(a) in the critical
accounting estimates and judgements and
Note 5 and Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B2HERGBREEMT2.17 - GFE T B MK
Bt 54 (a) B E & 5T A5t K B DA K2 M sE5 AP aE7 -

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
recognised revenue amounted to HK$356,211,000
from construction works, with the related
construction contracts costs amounted to
HK$319,892,000.

B E2021543H31BIEEFE - E5E®ER
356,211,000 TTHIW A T 2R B 2T 12 - EARRE
4 KK A £319,892,000/ 7T ©

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised
over the period of individual contract by measuring
the progress towards complete satisfaction of
individual performance obligation. The Group
recognises revenue using either input method
or output method, with the selection of method
dependent upon which method best depicts the
way the Group satisfies its performance obligation
over time. The decision as to which method to
use is made for each contract, after considering
the nature of the goods or services that the Group
promised to transfer to the customer.
BESANBABBGEERTERBITENBLASR
BEEEEENSNBRARNTUAER - EEEHEAR
NESE HABRWMA - FIARNEBREURRBE S
FrmEfl EEERRERBRITERAOEBNSG
X -BEASNTRBABSZRELERE BEEEA
HEBRLAEPHNERIRBHEERRE -
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BRESEE(E)
BPEFETRNERBSFEAMADT

s BEESHMNERKEE

s HMRERBHEHUERAFHLRRERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWESNTEEBRESNEE

BESONETTEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
accounting for measuring the progress towards
satisfaction of the performance obligation, revenue,
cost and profit recognition of construction contracts
included:

HEBEHAERITRABHENEE EELNNHK
A RAREMEROGARE AR EFE
&

- We assessed and tested the key controls
over the project costs budgetary process
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

- BMEFERAREBEEXNATEEBERNFEEE
% WEBZERML TRERE REME R RR
H= (e 8T FHREEEERR
SHFFRBURNME) KPR ERERRAEF
JE B ©

- We selected, on a sample basis, contracts
to examine management’s budget of the
cost component, such as costs of materials,
subcontracting fees and labour costs, etc. We
compared the budgeted cost components to
supporting documents including but not limited
to price quotation and rate of labour costs.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Under input method, revenue on construction
contracts is recognised with reference to actual
costs incurred by the Group up to the end of the
reporting period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract. Under output method,
revenue recognition is based on the stage of
completion of contract activity by reference to work
performed at balance sheet date as a percentage
of the total contract value.

BERANE BEARONNKARLEEEZHREH
R BEEEERELENKNNEZSHMEEKAER
MBEDLLMER - RIBH DS KABERSERE
PEGEBRMETIRGEACHNBERSLBES
HEENE) T TREER o

Recognition of revenue, cost and profit on
contracts requires significant judgement and
estimates in (a) measuring the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation; (b) estimating total budgeted costs
and profit margin for each projects; and (c)
estimating the expected recovery of costs arising
from variation of work scope during the contracts
periods. We focused on this area as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the revenue and
the related costs to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the significance of the
judgement and estimates involved.

BHHBRA ~ KA R s M EREEH (@ EER T
PRITBHNEBNER Db NEEKR
BERMEE  RofEsIa0PRERETEHREE
MEEMKARGET BN - ARRARBEXEAE &
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BANESNAEERERETSE

- We inspected material construction contracts
of the Group and agreed contract sum and

variations, if any, to management’s records.

- Hfitwt BEEENERBZESHAREEE

AEMEENEBELEE (WA) -

- We tested, on sample basis, actual costs
incurred to supporting documents including, but
no limited to, suppliers’ invoices and labour cost

allocation schedules.

= BAPERBEZEXH (BRETRRHERAE
[METRADER) HESRBONERKAETT

R -

- We assessed the competence and
independence of external quantity surveyors

involve in selected contracts.

= HPFE2EME Y 2 & KRINE TROB B 2

BRI BB -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT S

MEETERE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RN EFOAEERRETSE

For projects where revenue was recognised using input
method:

R AR AR TR IKARE A T -

- We compared the actual costs incurred against
the latest budgeted costs to understand the
status of the project completion and profit
margin, identified whether there are any cost
overruns, potential onerous contact or variation
of work scope. Where applicable, we checked
these changes from the original work scope to
supporting documents.

- BB EHFNERN AN EFZHATAEETY
B UTHREETIRALNEE BEESERF
EERKARS BEBRGAS TIEHENE
% EEANER  HAISMRYE R TEDE
Z BB R ERE X o

- We compared the project’s stage of completion
under input method with quantity surveyors’
certificates at period end, where available. We
inquired management in respect of significant
differences noted and checked such differences
to supporting documents.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BREFEE(Z)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETSE BRMNBESA NN EEBERETSE

Furthermore, for projects where revenue was
recognised using output method:

SESh - WA AR R ANEAME ¢

- We checked the completion status specified in
quantity surveyors’ certificates and compared
the status/amount with revenue recognised.

= BMERE TR ASMBASHETAN T IR
WHEBRR EEDERRAIELR -

- We discussed with the project managers about
the status of the projects and latest budget
costs, to identify any variations of contracts,
claims and potential onerous contracts, and
to obtain explanations from management for
fluctuations in margins and changes in budget
as well as the expected recovery of variations.

= M HEIE B LB RIER AR K&K AT
B UBREEANEE BRRLEBEEERS
A WHRFERKRS BEZ S RIEHES KD
EREEREERENHNA -

- We inspected the correspondence with
customers and sub-contractors, on a sample
basis, for corroboration of management
explanations.

= BEmEREREEP ks 2m 2 e - )
EEERERGA -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s judgements and assumptions
applied in determining the revenue, cost and profit
recognition of construction contracts were supportable
by the evidence obtained and procedures performed.
ERERARFNER  BMRABEEEREERESH
BOHA ~ BRI S N e 5 B P R R 0 1 B R R 2 3R
EEBRREFERIE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETSE BRMNEBEA NN EEBRENSE

Estimated useful lives and residual values of HHEBRENASAIEREEREGER
plant and equipment

Refer to Note 2.5 in the summary of significant  Our procedures in relation to management’s estimated
accounting policies, Note 4(b) in the critical useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment
accounting estimates and judgements and Note 14  included:
to the consolidated financial statements. MEEEYER MR ENGT I FERFERERGER
B2HERGABRRMENT2.5 GREMBHREM HMADKDNEFESE
A EZ Gt hET RAE A RMiFE14 -

— We understood and assessed the key controls

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying value of plant over the valuation of plant and equipment
and equipment amounted to HK$544,783,000, with and assessed the inherent risk of material
depreciation charge for the year ended 31 March misstatement by considering the degree
2021 amounted to HK$27,158,000. of estimation uncertainty and level of other
M202153H31H M EAEZHEZEEER inherent risk factors such as complexity,
544,783,000/ T mE £2021F3A31 B IEFE 247 subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
E 3 H A27,158,000/ 7T © management bias or frand.

- BFIE TR AW R R EGHEN T REE
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Z(EME TEE ZPRBEEERI L
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B o

= We discussed with the management on the
recent market development that might impact
the prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets for each category of plant and
equipment and the value of scrap metal at
year end. We performed independent research
to corroborate with the management’s
assessment.

- BAME BB IR E 5 5w B Al g & 5% A R 5%
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETSE

Management estimates useful lives of plant and
equipment annually by reference to the industry
practice, expected repair and maintenance, and if
there is any technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in the
market. Residual values of the plant and equipment
are determined based on prevailing market values
for equivalent aged assets taking into account
the condition of the relevant assets or the value
of scrap metal. Depreciation expense would be
significantly affected by the useful lives and residual
values of the plant and equipment as estimated by
management.

EREEF2ETXREN BHEECRRE UK
ERBEMEATSE RN EEHNRMEEES
EBE - et RREOAIERFS - B &R
HORGRBEDREEARERKEENRITMEE
E U REBEENMRAXEHNEER ERE
PRLEr M R REN I ERFRARRREES LT
EERBEARATE -

We focused on this area, in particular machinery
and equipment which contribute substantially of
the carrying amount of plant and equipment, as a
key audit matter due to the fact that the carrying
value of plant and equipment represented 94% of
non-current assets and 58% of total assets of the
Group, and significant judgement is involved in
determining the useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment.

HAREHR R RENREEG EXEFRDHEEN
94% K 42 & EE HI58% « LA RIE 5 TE Mk [ SR A B ]
ERFHRFGEBERFREZHE  RMRLER
R ETEIEM E TN UL SR - CH 2R &R
HEOREEREERE DO R RE -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN EFNANEERRETSE

We sample checked market quotations
and recent scrap metal price to assess
whether the residual value of each type of
plant and equipment is within reasonable
range and challenged the judgement and
estimates involved in the assessment with the
management.

AP TR A S T 35 #R (B ok R 5 60 3 HA (B AR DA BT
HERRRERRENRREERTBSESHE -
W BLEF (& PSR B HI T R et E IR R E
B o

We also compared, on a sample basis, the
key specifications, including the model, year of
manufacture, equipment and modifications of
the comparable plant and equipment with those
owned by the Group to assess the suitability of
the comparison.

BT EERE (BIEAIE BB N R EH
BSE  BUEFH  RELBEBR) BREEFR
BER MM N R TR LR R AR
Reh@Em -

We reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on financial impact of
fluctuation on residual values and estimated
useful lives to depreciation.

B EHERERERNGREE LA EAF
HRBHITENM BT EBETHORRMESNT -

We assessed useful lives by benchmarking to
other industry players and performing research
to consider whether there are changes or
improvements in the market which could
potentially result in technical or commercial
obsolescence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRENEE BN ES N ARERERETEE

- We tested, on a sample basis, whether
additions to plant and equipment have been
recorded in proper categories with relevant
useful lives and residual values, for the
calculation of depreciation.

- M RITEM S - HAFIE TR S KR
NERB LN A BRI AL B & B R R (E
BHH -

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that management’s judgements and assumptions
applied in the estimation of useful lives and residual
values of plant and equipment were supportable by the
evidence obtained and procedures performed.
ERBBARFNER BB RERBMEET M K&K
18 80 R] 56 R 4F B K I BA B E 1B 12 1 AT IR AR &Y FI T 2 1R
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

B AR S

EERBERZEENGESYBHRREAEK
EHNEMEGE)

ERBEAVBHRERE EFRAF
i BERERBLENREN  LEERS
MTHREERFBECERBANER - UKL
ARBEREREFER KIEFEAE
# BEREFRAFILEE  NpIEEM
ERNBRTRE-

[
RN
XA
il
23
i
B
B’
i
A
i)
=
g
W
2h
of

BRBMRES RS M BRRAENEE

BANER RSV BHREERES
TEEARMFRBERMERHNEKRE
RS AERE  YHEBEEME
ReZBE®RE - ZMER BT (ER
ER)BERMANER Rt 2 AHmE
FIEEMER -  HAITERABENAR
REMEMALTE ESAEETAEE A
EREFEEZRKFORE  EBETERIERR
(BEENEADETHET  EX—EX
B8 BR PR AL 77 FE B AR RE 3R 3R © $ARRIRM AT A
MEFFR ARSI - MRAEBRHATME
BHERRERAIRER BLRA M HRKRER
F KA G M TS MR AT E H DR TE
A B RAH SRR AT AR IEE K -

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT



%
Independent Auditor’s Report
B AT S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT BREMRETREMBERRAENER
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (#&)
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AT S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZHERERK

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #£E2021F3A31HLF/E

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7 FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers EE&HMA 5 356,211 916,831
Cost of sales 8H B B AR 7 (360,264) (790,165)
Gross (loss)/profit (£8) =4 (4,053) 126,666
Other loss, net H b 5518 — 55 6 - (635)
Other income H fth ug A 6 15,149 832
Administrative expenses TERAX 7 (47,945) (43,147)
Operating (loss)/profit K (BR) & T (36,849) 83,816
Finance income B S ILA 8 1,397 2,287
Finance costs BEER 8 (1,386) (2,424)
Finance income/(costs), net FWA(EH)—
FER 8 11 (137)
(Loss)/profit before income tax KrETE LAl (B51B)
i Al (36,838) 83,679
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe, (FAR) 9 3,087 (10,661)
(Loss)/profit for the year FZ (BB &F (33,751) 73,018
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity RAFIERTAA
holders of the Company FEAE (E548) /%% 7 (33,751) 73,018
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(E8),w (33,751) 73,018
Other comprehensive income H A2 m Uz A
Items that may be subsequently AJEEREEEH nHE
reclassified to profit or loss B2 HH
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial BAFEFAEMER
assets at fair value through other WAZERMEEZ R
comprehensive income FEKE, (E8) 410 (800)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FE2E(BR) WA
for the year FEEL] (33,341) 72,218
Total comprehensive (loss)/income VN/NEIE s S VN
attributable to equity holders of the 2| (BEA) WA
Company @ (33,341) 72,218
2021 2020
HK cents HK cents
AL Al
Basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share &FRXEZAN & #E (FH18)
S B 11 (2.01) 4.35

FI04E207AEZMER U FHREM B R
R

The notes on pages 104 to 207 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

meEEERER

As at 31 March 2021 7202143 31H

Assets

Non-current assets

Right-of-use assets

Plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Trade and retention receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Contract assets

Income tax recoverable

Restricted bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Note
B 5
BE
FRBEE
EREEE 13
M K 7R 1 14
BEEFTSTREE 20
BRATEGFAEMEE
WAZEBEE 15
%o RIENKRIE 16
REEE

RWEZRANREE 16
Be  BNRIENEA

FE W IR 16
BEHNEE 17
Al Uk E AT IS HR
PR Bl ER1T A4S AR 18
HeRIBRESEEY 18
EEHAE
-
fi& A 19(a)
(ke 19(b)
ERAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHET THET
13,347 19,284
544,783 543,671
1,408 2,877
20,530 20,120
2,155 836
582,223 586,788
152,749 236,663
7,214 6,984
- 379
70 2,090
3,192 3,145
187,921 207,321
. so146 456,582
933,369 1,043,370
4,200 4,200
626,786 693,727
630,986 697,927




Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred income tax liabilities
Lease liabilities

Amount due to a director

Current liabilities
Trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables

Contract liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Income tax payable
Amount due to a director

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 207
were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2021 and

were signed on its behalf.

Lau Chun Ming
g8
Director

EF

The notes on pages 104 to 207 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Note
B =
=R
FRBEME
& 23
BELEFEMAE 20
HEBE 13

JEft—RESEHIAE 22, 27(d)

REBEE
ENESHBERREE 21
FEST FRIB & H b fE

IR 21
BHAE 17
f& 3 23
HERE 13
eI FrISHR

et —R2ESFR

BEAR

EEkBEAE

22, 27(d)

mEEERER

As at 31 March 2021 7202143 A31H

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET &L
2,534 10,045
51,821 56,423
6,364 -
- 3,145
60,719 69,613
58,927 124,299
18,395 24,655
- 11,366
103,977 109,437
7,104 4,364
69 1,709
53,192 —
241,664 275,830
[ 302,383 345,443
933,369 1,043,370

REE
Leung Lai So
RE#H
Director

EF

RZAERED

2021FF5R o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

mEEmZBR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #%20214F 3831 B IEF/E

Financial assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive
Share Share income fair value Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserves eamings Total
RAVE AR
2EUAZER
kA& RARE BEZLTERRE R REEF @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TATL ThL AL TAL
Balance at 31 March 2019 as RO0194E3A31H B8
originally stated (nB%250) 4200 194,087 1,170 10,500 415,959 625,916
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 AR BRE R
1652 = = = - (207) (207)
Balance at 1 April 2019 as restated 120194 1R 2 &5 (B E7) 4,200 194,087 1170 10,500 415,762 625,709
Comprehensive income 2EHA
Profit for the year EREA - - - - 73,018 73,018
Fair value losses on financial assets ~ ZATFEFAZZERALZ
at falr value through other SBEEZATEER
comprehensive income - - (800) - - (800)
Total comprehensive income L ETTON ]
for the year = = (800) - 73,018 72,218
Balance at 31 March 2020 W2020F3A31A 2 &5 4,200 194,087 370 10,500 488,770 697,927
Balance at 31 March 2020 R2020%3A31 B 2tk 4,200 194,087 370 10,500 488,770 697,927
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (33,751) (33,751)
Fair value gain on financial assets ~ RATEFAEMZERALZ
at falr value through other eHEE ATENE
comprehensive income - - 40 - - 410
Total comprehensive loss EEXEFRAR
for the year - - 40 - (33,751) (33,341)
Contribution by and BEANEEREEMEY
distribution to owners ipipe
Final dividends relating to the year ~ BEIEIZ200053A31 B ILER
ended 31 March 2020 (Note 10) BRER S (FEE10) - - - - (33,600) (33,600)
Balance at 31 March 2021 Roo1%3A51A 24 4200 194,087 780 10,500 421,419 630,986

The notes on pages 104 to 207 are an integral part of these F104E207E 2 M AN EHRE VB I

RZAERED »

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash (used in)/generated
from operations
Interest paid
Interest received
Interest element of lease payments
Restricted bank balances

Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid)

Net cash (used in)/generated from

operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of plant and
equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Drawdown of long-term bank loans
Repayment of long-term bank loans

Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Principal elements of lease payments

Drawdown from a director
Dividend paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from

financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

Represented by:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bank overdraft

The notes on pages 104 to 207 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #£E2021F3A31HLF/E

Note
B 5

RERLETHHNRESRE
g (FA) /s

R 55 26(a)
=ENEESS

=R E NS

HENRHFEH D

R I SR 1T 45 £4
RE/(BR)BBFER

REES (A B
ReFH

RERETHNEESRE

BE B N R AR

o B A % R Y

Fr1S 3k 38 26(b)

REZHMAREFE

REMETENRESARE
IR BIRITER 26
EERHBETER 26
IREEHRITER 26
BEBEHETER 26
MEMRZARE S0 26
—REFDIT A 26
SRR

88888

o

= = = = = =

BMEEH (A B
BEF8

RERBREEEY
(W) /48 b0 F 58

RENNERE R
ReFEY

RELXNRERRE
EEY

235 :
RITREFRS 18
RITHESZ 23

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(3,006) 13,426
(996) (1,847)
1,397 2,287
(343) (507)
(47) (70)
334 (540)
(2,661) 12,749
(12,243) (21,225)
- 68
(12,243) (21,157)
- 19,961
(8,601) (8,219)
248,294 290,144
(272,306) (268,506)
(8,117) (14,615)
50,000 -
(33,600) -
| (24,330) 18,765
(39,234) 10,357
207,321 196,964
168,087 207,321
187,921 207,321
(19,834) -
168,087 207,321

F104E207E 2 MR EH A B R
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in
Hong Kong and Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.622. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except for the financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income (Note
15) which are stated at fair value.

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Amended standards and revised
conceptual framework

The Group has applied the following amended
standards and revised conceptual framework
for the first time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 April 2020:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

Definition of Material

Definition of a Business

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform -
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Phase 1

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting

The amended standards and revised conceptual
framework listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current
or future periods.
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N’ﬁotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards, revised
accounting guideline, amended annual
improvements and amended interpretation
not yet adopted by the Group

Certain new and amended standards, revised
accounting guideline, amended annual
improvements and amended interpretation have
been published that are not mandatory for 31
March 2021 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards, revised
accounting guideline, amended annual
improvements and amended interpretation
not yet adopted by the Group (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

BEREHBEBEE)

21 HREBEEE(E)

(b) A E R IRAA ) FT
FTRAENEETER - 48
EET 251755~ A
& F B2 RAEEET

2 fE (')

Effective for

accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RT3 B Hek
a3t v
SEEEN
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
BEEMBREENR16% 2 BT BRMEBRRENESER 202056A1H
HKAS 39, HKFRS4, HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 1 January 2021
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BAGHRERE00N FAMBREEUE NXEEHE-F_KR 20211410
4%  BRUBREENETR - BBHHK
RERRERREBHBREENE16
iivaCH]
Accounting Guideline 5 (Amendments) Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations 1 January 2022
g5t 3I E5% 2 BE] EEb G A 202261A1H
Annual Improvements Projects Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
FREBERR 2018F E2020%F B MM K 202241418

HKAS 16 (Amendments)

Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended Use

1 January 2022

BEGEAZE16% 2B NE BHRXE-(EREREANAERE 202251A1H
HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract 1 January 2022
BAGHEREITR 2 EET BEREN-BITRNNKA 2022%1A18
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
ERNBRERNEIR 2B Z2REER 202241 A1H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2023

BB G RRE1% 2 BT KEBIBARIIIERD 2023F1A1H
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 17 (Amendments)  Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
ERMBREENBTHRREBUBHRE RRED 2023%1A18
ERIFEATHR 2 1BF]
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (Amendments)  Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification 1 January 2023
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards, revised
accounting guideline, amended annual
improvements and amended interpretation
not yet adopted by the Group (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these new
and amended standards, revised accounting
guideline, amended annual improvements and
amended interpretation is expected to be in the
period of initial application. The Group does
not anticipate the adoption of them to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

Principles of consolidation

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.2.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.2.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business, the equity interests issued
by the Group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and the fair value of any
pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or
loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate
to borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within
finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within
other gain/(losses).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are

recognised as in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount of the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.6).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”); and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s

business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(a) Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income (“OCI”). For
investments in equity instruments that are not
held for trading, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the
time of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when
and only when its business model for managing
the assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction cost of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

(Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

(1) Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses are charged within
operating profit in the consolidated income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7  Investments and other financial assets 27 RERHEMESBEEE)
(Continued)
(c)  Measurement (Continued) () F=E(#E)
Debt instruments (Continued) EHTAE)
(2)  Fair value through other comprehensive (2 RAFEFAEMS

income [EI PN

Assets that are held for collection of contractual HEKEDEAORERERT
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, EEMEECEE  WZE
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely BEREREEEINA
payments of principal and interest, are measured EF 8 - AR AT EFTAE
at fair value through other comprehensive MmEEKAGE - REEE
income. Movements in the carrying amount are T AEMEEUA - HER
taken through other comprehensive income, REWEER R ZIBER
except for the recognition of impairment gains kB 1R - A B A R AMNE
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange WS R EIE 2 RGN - &
gains and losses which are recognised in the BB ERILERR - LRIR
consolidated income statement. When the Efh2EKR AR 2T
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative mdEERERETDES
gain or loss previously recognised in other B - ZEemBEEZNE
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity WAL E B R =R A
to profit or loss. Interest income from these I ONE

financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented b 5 W2 2 B 18 PR B M i s
in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses (B R 2% - mEERH
are presented as separate line items in the X AR 2 E W SR IEE L
statement of comprehensive income. IHH 2% -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI,
there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends
from such investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

e P RRME

BEREHBEBEE)

KREMNHEMEREE (&)

) FEE)

AEBRBR A TEFEMR
BERAKRE - WAKEERE
BEENEMEZEKAZT
AR E R FE RS KB
B RIEBRRERTEH
B FEK SR ERERD
BERS - EAKEREIK
U B SRR R B - %
BREMBREHENBmER
REM U

&=
=T
7

B ER AR MBEEKA
B B A 48 B R B B 18 (RUR
BEEERED) ~€A8 R T E
HMEB B 2R -

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

(d) Impairment

The Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost are subject to HKFRS 9’s new
expected credit loss model. The Group assesses
on a forward looking basis where the expected
credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1(c) set
out the details on how the Group determines
whether there has been a significant increase in

credit risk.

For trade and retention receivables, other
receivables and contract assets, the Group
applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. The provision matrix is determined
based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the contract assets and trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates.
At every reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the

forward-looking estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables and deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
balances are assessed on a 12-month expected
credit losses. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivables has occurred since initial
recognition, then the impairment is measured as

lifetime expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold or services performed
in the ordinary course of business. They are
generally due for settlement within 90 days and
therefore are all classified as current. If not, they
are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and retention receivables, and deposits
and other receivables are recognised initially at
the amount of the unconditional consideration
unless they contain significant financing
components, when they are recognised at fair
value. The Group holds the trade receivables
with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of

three months or less.

2.11 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares are shown in equity as a

deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.12 Trade and retention payables, and other payables

Trade and retention payables are obligations
to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as

non-current liabilities.

Trade and retention payables, and other
payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of
the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.14

2.15

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16  Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year
is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is
probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group measures
its tax balances either based on the most likely
amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

BEAREHBEBEE)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.16 BERRIEIEFTS T (&)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.16 BNEAREIEFTSH (&)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

BEAREHBEBEE)

2.17 Revenue recognition 217 WAER

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes. Revenue is recognised when
goods are transferred or services are rendered to
the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, service may
provide over time or at a point in time. Service is
provided over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer; or

o creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to
date.

If service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued) 217 WAMER(E)

If the Group expects the reference to progress
certificates issued by the customers, with
additional adjustments where necessary, depicts
the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services promised to customers
for individual projects, the Group satisfies the
performance obligation over time and therefore,
recognises revenue over time in accordance
with the output method for measuring progress.
Under output method, revenue recognition
is based on the stage of completion of the
contracts, provided that the stage of contract
completion and the gross billing value of
contracting work can be measured reliably. The
stage of completion of a contract is established
by reference to the construction works certified
by independent surveyors.

If construction projects have no alternative use
to the Group contractually and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment from the customers
for performance completed to date, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation over time
and therefore, recognises revenue over time in
accordance with the input method for measuring
progress. Under input method, revenue on
construction contracts is recognised based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of
the performance obligation, by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the outcome of a contract cannot be
estimated reliably, foundation work and ancillary
service is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in supply and foundation
work and ancillary service to the extent of
contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for the services that
the Group has transferred to a customer. In
addition, incremental costs incurred to obtain
a new contract, if recoverable, are capitalised
as contract assets and subsequently amortised
when the related revenue is recognised.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment
under the same approach adopted for
impairment assessment of financial assets carried
at amortised cost.

A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to
render the services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration from the
customer. A contract liability is recognised by the
Group when the customer pays consideration in
advance before the Group renders the service to
the customer. Contract liabilities mainly included
the advance payments received from provision of
foundation work and ancillary services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

217

Revenue recognition (Continued)

On the consolidated balance sheet, the Group
reports the net contract position for each
contract as either an asset or a liability. A
contract asset represents an asset where costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings; a contract
liability represents a liability where the opposite is
the case.

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for
financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b) Pension Obligations

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance
with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance of Hong Kong. Under the rules of the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees in
Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5%
of the employees’ gross earnings with a ceiling of
HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the MPF Scheme and the Social Security Plan
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 219 EEEH (&)

(c) Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans
and pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve
months after balance sheet date are discounted
to present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Earnings per share
(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by
dividing:

° the profit attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing
equity other than ordinary shares

o by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

o the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group has elected not to
separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payment that are based on

an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability, if any.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a
similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received, and makes adjustments specific to the
lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance costs. The finance costs are charged
to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liability;
o any lease payments made at or before

the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

o restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets
comprise small items of office equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Leases (Continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position based on their nature. The
Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of the financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

8.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities which are denominated in a
currency that is not the Company’s functional

currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in HK$. The majority of assets
and liabilities are denominated in HK$, Macao
Patacas (“MOP”) and Euro (“EUR”), and there are
no significant assets and liabilities denominated
in other currencies. Management considered that
the foreign exchange risk for MOP is minimal
since exchange rate fluctuation was minimal.

As at 31 March 2021, there is no bank borrowing

denominated in EUR.

As at 31 Mach 2020, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against EUR with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s net assets at
the year end and profits for the year would have
been HK$433,000 higher/lower, respectively,
mainly as a result of foreign currency gains/losses
on translation of the bank borrowings dominated

in EUR.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash and bank balances and
borrowings. Except for borrowings with variable
interest, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing liabilities. Borrowings at variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Cash and bank balances at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk.

As at 31 March 2021, if the interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis-points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss for the year would be HK$916,000
(2020: post-tax profit: HK$1,024,000) higher/
lower (2020: lower/higher) mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
trade and retention receivables, deposits and
other receivables, contract assets, cash in bank
and restricted bank balances.

To manage the risk arising from cash in bank
and restricted bank balances, the Group only
transacts with reputable banks which are all
high-credit-quality financial institutions. There has
no recent history of default in relation to these
financial institutions. The expected credit loss is
close to zero.

For deposits and other receivables, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability
of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records and past
experience. The management believes that the
expected credit loss is close to zero.

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets are monitored on
an ongoing basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and
retention receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
and retention receivables and contract assets
have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets related to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same
risk characteristics as the trade and retention
receivables for the same types of contracts. The
Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets and retention receivables.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of trade and retention
receivables and contract assets over the period
before the consolidated balance sheet date
and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the customers to settle the
receivables. The Group has identified the Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) and the construction
expenditure index of the cities in which it
operates to be the most relevant factor, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group overall considers the shared
credit risk characteristic and the days past
due of the trade and retention receivables
as the measurement for the expected

credit loss.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at
31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 was
determined as follows for both trade and

retention receivables:

31 March 2021

Hong Kong
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount

- trade receivables
Gross carrying amount

- retention receivables
Loss allowance

Macau

Expected loss rate

Gross carrying amount
- contract assets

Loss allowance

202137318

&
BHERE
REEE
-EREAFKA
REEE
-EhRES
EERfE

0!
BHERE
REEE
—ANEE
EERfE
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More than
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past due
BHEB30A
HK$'000
TR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Credit risk (Continued)

31 March 2020

Hong Kong
Expected loss rate
Gross carrying amount

- trade receivables
Gross carrying amount

- retention receivables
Loss allowance

Macau

Expected loss rate

Gross carrying amount
~ contract assets

Loss allowance

*

2020%€3F31H Current
Gl
HK$'000
TAT
BB
HHEER 0%"
RS
—~EWE 5508 122,195
RS
-EHREE 64,394
BERE -
35|
HHEER 100%
RS
-AHBE 25,009
FERE 25,009

Expected credit loss is close to zero as

these trade and retention receivables

are limited to recent history of default.

The Group categorises trade or other receivables
for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments. Where trade or other
receivables have been written off, the Group
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised
in consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial assets.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-term
financial assets, receivables and certain assets
that the Group considers appropriate and long
term financing including long-term borrowings
are also considered by the Group in its capital
structuring. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping sufficient bank balances
and interest bearing borrowings which enable
the Group to continue its business for the
foreseeable future.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interests
payments computed using contractual rates, or
if floating, based on the current rates at the year
end date). Where the loan agreement contains
a repayable on demand clause which gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at
any time, the amounts repayable are classified
in the earliest time bracket in which the lender
could demand repayment. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021
Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables

Amount due to a director
Long-term bank loans
Short-term bank loans
Bank overdraft

Lease liabilities

#202153A31H

BT E 5508
kErBe

JERT 3R ] H o fE 1
T

ERN—2EEHE

RBHFITER

RERTER

RITEX

HEAE

]

3 MBRBER (&)
3.1 HBKEREKREZGE)
@  AEBELEE ()
On
demand
and less Between Between
than1 1and2 2and5 Carrying
year years years Total amount
RERR
PR-F -EWE ZZILF B REEHE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx THErn TFEx TFTErn TFER
58,927 - - 58,927 58,927
2,304 - - 2,304 2,304
53,217 - - 53,217 53,192
7,740 2,576 - 10,316 9,978
76,779 - - 76,779 76,699
19,834 - - 19,834 19,834
7,428 4,544 1,947 13,919 13,468
226,229 7,120 1,947 235,296 234,402
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERRER (&)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HHKEREKREZGE)
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (@  AEBELEE(E)
On
demand

and less  Between Between

than1 1and2 2and5 Carrying
year years years Total  amount
REXR

PR—F —EMF —E0F @it RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE000 HK$'000 HK$000
TEr TRz TErT TEx TER

As at 31 March 2020 20204538318
Trade and retention payables ERNESHE

kRE & 124,299 - - 124299 124,299
Accruals and other payables B RIER

H {th & 518 5,814 = - 5,814 5,814
Amount due to a director BN —R2EEHE - 3,254 - 3,254 3,145
Long-term bank loans RERTER 9,165 7,893 2,491 19,549 18,579
Short-term bank loans RHBTER 101,391 - - 101,391 100,908
Lease liabilities MERE 4,422 - - 4,422 4,364

245,091 11,147 2,491 258,729 257,104
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

e P RRME

3 BERER (&)

Capital risk management 3.2 BARKRERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital REEESEEARANBEZF
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue EAEEEFELENE
as a going concern in order to provide returns for 71 {ETm AR RS R B3R &
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders REMERFFA ARMEAR
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to @ FAIRRFERENERE
reduce the cost of capital. BUARREE AR o
The capital structure of the Group consists of REBWEAREHBEER
equity and borrowings. In order to maintain or RAETR o BHEEoy R E ARG
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust 1 AEES@RARS TR
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, RERESHE  MRRZEE
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares BT EEELUR
or sell assets to reduce borrowings. The Group //FE%?K REBEERGL
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The RELERE K o ﬁFE{sttTM
gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided BEFRER A RERTE
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total & %%ﬂl%ﬂ%?&)ﬁkﬁi&ﬁi
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. The EEY - EEABLLERNT :
gearing ratios were as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FATT
Borrowings (Note 23) &R (H17E23) 106,511 119,482
Less: cash and cash equivalents B IRERREEFEEY
(Note 18) (Hti£18) (187,921) (207,321)
Net cash INEF (81,410) (87,839)
Total equity B 630,986 697,927
Gearing ratio BEEARLE N/ATE R N/AT#E A
As at 31 March 2021, the Group was in net cash MR2021F3A31H ' K& &

position, taking into accounts its borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets (other than financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income) and
financial liabilities, including cash and cash
equivalents, restricted bank balances, trade
and retention receivables, deposits and other
receivables, trade and retention payables, other
payables and borrowings approximate their
fair values, which either due to their short-term
maturities, or that they are subject to floating
rates.

The carrying amount of amount due to a director
was a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

The Group’s financial instruments are measured
in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as

follows:

2021

Financial assets at fair value BN ER AHAM
through other comprehensive EEBAZ
income (Note 15) SREE (MiF15)

2020

Financial assets at fair value BRAFER AR
through other comprehensive Z2HEHKBAZ
income (Note 15) SREE (MiE15)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

8.8 Fair value estimation (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021, there
were no transfers of financial assets of the
Group between different levels of the fair value
hierarchy.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, there
were no significant changes in the business or
economic circumstances that affect the fair value
of the Group’s financial assets.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(@)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations
prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the
major contractors, suppliers or vendors involved
and the experience of the management. In order
to keep the budget accurate and up-to-date,
management conducts periodic reviews of the
budgets of contracts by comparing the budgeted
amounts to the actual amounts incurred. Such
significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.

The Group recognises its contract revenue
based on the satisfaction of the performance
obligation either input method or output method,
by reference to the contract costs incurred up
to the end of reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract or
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date
when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting periods. The Group reviews
and revised the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract
as the contract progress. Management regularly
reviews the progress of the contracts and the
corresponding costs of the contract revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(o)

Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy,
the industry practice, expected usage of the
assets, expected repair and maintenance, the
technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in the market.
Residual values of the machinery and equipment
are determined based on prevailing market
values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets or
the value of scrap metal and other economic
considerations. Depreciation expense would
be significantly affected by the useful lives and
residual values of the plant and equipment as
estimated by management.

If the residual values of plant and equipment
had further decreased by 10%, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$5,397,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$6,351,000).

If the useful life of plant and equipment had
further decreased by one year, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$3,808,000
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$2,538,000).

e P RRME

4 BEEGTHET R A E (E)

W R R B AT R ERF
Hi K KR (B (B

EEEDN2EAKRENEH
B HEEEERE 17
XIER EEFEHRSE &
HeehRs  EmHEL
KR EEHNRMKEET
B - AET R MR E
REASGESRY Y S L)
R EEDRERRSRE
BEMBRITMEEE - L&
Ko A R & EE A N 3K R L
BEREMEEEEBER -
BB AT AT R SRR Y
ERFRRFBREERSY
TEEREEATE -

=

AWM REENEGER
E—FRAD10%  AIREZE
20213318 L FE BT
& B 1518 105,397,000/%
ot (20204 : 6,351,0007%
JT) °

EHM R REO R
HE—FRHL—F - AJRE
F2021F3A31H L FEH
I & & R 3% 503,808,000
77T (20204F : 2,538,000/7%8
JT) °

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(©

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for plant and equipment
at the end of each reporting period. Plant and
equipment are tested for impairment when
there are impairment indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from market
quotations of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of
the asset. Management determines the market
values of plant and equipment by reference to
comparable market transactions.

Such valuations with reference to comparable
market transactions are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties
and might differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has
been given to the underlying assumptions by
adjusting the differences to reflect current
prices in active market for plant and machinery
of different model, condition and age. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual
market data and sales transactions in the market.

In the impairment review for plant and equipment,
management has performed sensitivity analysis
by discounting the market value. Management
believes that any reasonably foreseeable changes
in any of the above key assumptions would
not cause the carrying amounts of plant and
equipment to exceed the recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
Hong Kong and Macau. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.

e P RRME

4 BEEGTHET R A E (E)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue from contract with customers, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents gross contract receipts on
foundation works and ancillary services in the ordinary
course of business. Revenue recognised is as follows:

Foundation works and
ancillary services

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The
executive directors regard the Group’s business as
one single operating segment and reviews financial
information accordingly.

Revenue from foundation works and ancillary services
are recognised over time during the year ended 31
March 2021 (2020: same).

(@) Segment information

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from
customers in Hong Kong. The principal assets
of the Group were also located in Hong Kong as
at 31 March 2021. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical segment is provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b) Revenue derived from major customers

External customers which individually contributed
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group for
any of the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020
are as below:

Customer A %= P
Customer B BEZ
Customer C EFR
Customer D 2ET
Customer E BRI

e MR

EFEANBARDBESR (&)

KEBEEREFHEA

RE E20214F K%2020%3 A
318 I E ] —EFE BB
BAREERNEBEENRI

ABEREBBI0%ZIREF
LR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET

81,860  N/A T~ A
77,986  N/A 7@
55,462  N/A Ti@E M
36,444 467,528
N/A FEA 274,498
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e ISR

6  OTHER LOSS, NET, AND OTHER INCOME 6 HittEE-FEUARHEMIKA
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TAT
Other loss, net HfbEsiE— 558
Gain on disposal of B A B R Y
plant and equipment & - 5
Write-off of plant and equipment Jio1 58 A B2 B A - (540)
- (535)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Other income H A
Leasing of machinery TH & A 366 531
Government grants (Note) AT BY (A7 3E) 14,783 301
15,149 832
Note: The Group received government grants including Hiat - 22021538318 ILFE -
from Employment Support Scheme (“ESS”) under 7N £ B UK B A9 BT i B B FE B
Anti-Epidemic Fund, which is related to Coronavirus BMEESE N RIME]T
Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) amounting to the ZI| BT 3% B A9 #8 B 14,604,000
HK$14,604,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 BT (20204F @ #&) » H
(2020: Nil). There are no unfulfiled conditions or other 201978 ik 5 = 7% ([ 201978 AR
contingents attached to the grants. RER]) AR o B &
Pt 5 A ] o 3 B 16 14 Sk B A
B & -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Cost of sales

7

B & B AR

Construction contracts costs (Note (a)) ZEEEE& XK (K172 (a)

Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— right-of-use assets

Repair and maintenance

Others

Administrative expenses

Staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (Note (b))
Auditors’ remuneration
Depreciation
— owned plant and equipment
— right-of-use assets
Operating lease rental in respect of
— office and storage premises
— directors’ quarters (Note 30(a))
Professional fees
Motor vehicle expenses
Bank charges
Exchange losses/(gains)
Others

Total cost of sales and administrative

expenses

e
—BE#M &S
—EREEE
e RRE
HAt

THFAX

BIXRA(BREEH)
(Bfet®))

BRI &

e

—BE#W RS
—EREEE
UTEENKEHERS
—MAERBREME
—EFEE (ME300@)

BEXEH

ERX

RITFAX

X EE S (as)

HAt

55 E AR R

1T > AR

EHEEE WX

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TAT

319,892 756,249

26,431 23,326

108 454

1,100 1,172

12,733 8,964

360,264 790,165

19,370 14,965

1,613 1,682

727 570

7,023 6,893

5,326 4,227

722 2,168

5,476 4,596

2,894 2,896

298 472

267 (632)

4,229 5,310
| 47,945 I

408,209 833,312
2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7
Notes:

(@) Construction contract costs included but are not
limited to costs of construction materials, staff costs
(refer to Note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts
and consumables, subcontracting charges and
transportation.

Wages and salaries ITERF®

Pension costs — defined contribution BRERA—ERE
plans HRET &

Employment benefits EERH

Less: amount included in cost of sales & : st ASEERK A 2 &5
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BEMER S WRAX ()

Hiaz -

(@ BEESHKEAEBHEETRR
BREMBKAE BTRA (2
RTXME®p)  BREER -

T RERER D BEARE
WEM -
(o)

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
149,406 142,046
4,422 4,266
2,250 3,707
156,078 150,019
(136,708) (135,054)
19,370 14,965




7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes: (Continued)

(©

Five highest paid individuals

e P RRME

7 BEMER DR ()

Kz - (&)

(@

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest

in the Group include three directors (2020: three)

whose emoluments were reflected in the analysis

presented in Note 30(a). The emoluments paid to

the remaining two individuals (2020: two) are as

follows:

Salaries, other allowances and
benefits in kind

Bonus

Pension costs — defined
contribution plans

e Hfn=is
kEYREM

EAL

RRE KA
—E B RGEE

N

The emoluments of these individuals fell within

the following bands:

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000

1,500,0017% 7T £2,000,000/% 7T

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of

the directors or the five highest paid individuals

as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for the loss of office.

AL

ot

R&&

BE2021F3A31HIEFE -
REBRE&E=H AT A
BHE=ZZ (2020 : =R) &
= 1 F & S 5 W 5E30(a)
DR 25 - mHEBRRA
(2020%F : MA) AT TH
BemT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
2,940 2,940
245 245

17 33
3,202 3,218

ZEALTHME N FIATEH
:

Number of individuals

AB
2021 2020
2 2

AEBEHERNETNESRR
AREHFA LN ERMME
ERMAREEHMARSE
[ B O 2R B SR BE B AR (E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

8 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET 8 BWBA(BRH) 28
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAET
Finance income I ON
— Interest income on bank deposits —IRIT R H F B WA 1,397 2,287
Finance costs =]
— Interest expense on bank loans —HRITEFRNFERAX (960) (1,827)
— Interest expense on bank overdrafts —R77 3% S 8 4] 8. B 52 (36) (20)
— Interest expense on lease liabilities —FAEBEHH B X (343) (507)
— Interest expense on amount due to  —fEN —RBEEXIEH
a director (Note 27(b)) MB R (Bfatz7p) (47) (70)
(1,386) (2,424)
Finance income/(costs), net MR A (BR)—F58 11 (137)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9

The amount of income tax (credited)/charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income

represents:
Hong Kong profits tax EENEHR
Current income tax ENEA P15 %0
Deferred income tax (Note 20) EIEFTIS L (H12220)
Macau complementary tax BPITEH AT
Current income tax BEVEA AT 15750
Over-provision of current REEMET®
income tax in prior year BRERE A

Hong Kong profit tax is calculated at 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Macau taxation is calculated at tax rates applicable to
jurisdictions in Macau at 12% (2020: 12%).

e P RRME

R8s (BER) BxX

i mER (FTA) /X

EE
FiEB B

S

N

i)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
46 1,706
(3,133) 9,031
- (76)
(3,087) 10,661

BB B TRIEF N FT e R B 7
M16.5% (20204 : 16.5%) =t & o

SRR BRI AR E R E AN
i = 12% (20204 : 12%) 5T & -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

9 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continued) 9 B8 (ER) BX (&)
The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income tax NEBMBRFFERAT (ER) %8
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise HMEEEAREAMRTENERT
using the tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: HHEZE0AT :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BrRETS AT (B518) i 7 (36,838) 83,679
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% 1216.5% M LT E T 1B (6,078) 13,807
Tax effects of: NTEENTETE
Tax rates of overseas operation B INFE TS B FR R 59 35
Income not subject to tax BARTWA (2,666) (488)
Expenses not deductible R HH A
for tax purposes 8 20
Recognition of tax losses T 7R DA 1 117 2 HE 7R
previously not recognised TRIEEE - (2,334)
Tax losses for which no deferred WEBERELEMEHEE
income tax asset was recognised ORI R 5,611 171
Utilisation of previously ) A DA 1 37 28 7 7R
unrecognised tax losses I8 E 18 (1) (252)
Over-provision of income tax EEFER RS
in prior year - (76)
Others HAh (20) (222)
Income tax (credit)/expense i (Ee), FAx (3,087) 10,661
10 DIVIDEND 10 R E

The directors do not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021.

On 23 June 2020, the Board of Directors proposed a
final dividend of in respect of the year ended 31 March
2020 of approximately HK$33,600,000 representing
HK$0.02 per ordinary. Such dividend was approved
by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of
the Company. This proposed final dividend was not
reflected as a dividend payable as of 31 March 2020,
but was recorded as a distribution of reserves for the
year ending 31 March 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 11

(a)

Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the (loss)/profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the
respective years.

e P RRME

BR(ER) &F

(@)

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity ZAYNECIE: EE SN

holders of the Company (HK$'000)  FfEfh (B518) /& 7
(F&T)

Weighted average number of FEERERRFH
ordinary shares for the purpose I AR pNHE 19 #
of calculating basic earnings per (FR%)
share (thousands)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRERN (BB &
(HK cents) (L)

Diluted (b)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is of the same
amount as the basic (loss)/earnings per share as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding for the year ended 31 March 2021
and 2020.

BN

FREK(BE) BT
RIBAR RS T ARG
(E18) aFIR AEEFE
B 31T E BB P G

Sty

- 2021 2020
(33,751) 73,018
1,680,000 1,680,000
(2.01) 4.35

SR (BR) BfET
RER (EE) /BFER -
bt 7 B P 1 B E20214F K
202043 A31H I FE I &
RITEHEEEE T RR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

12

SUBSIDIARIES

Name

=L

Directly held by the Company:

HADFEERER:

Sam Woo Group Limited
(“SW (BVI)")

(T=#(BVI)))

Capital Plus Group Limited

Indirectly held by the Company:

HADAEERSE:

Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation

Limited (“SWBP")

“MERRAR ([ZMitE])

Sam Woo Construction &
Engineering Limited

SAERERERAA

Sam Woo Engineering Equipment

Limited (“SWEE?)

ZABBERDR ([ZA#R])

Place of
Incorporation and
kind of legal entity
FE AR Lt B
EEERER

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RERLES
ERAA

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RBRAES
BRDA]

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

& BRDA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 BRDA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 BRDA

Particulars of
issued share
capital

ERTRAHR

10,000 ordinary
shares of US$1
each

10,000 B R A E

1ETR LBk

2 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

M BRER
IXTHERR

10,000,000
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

10,000,0008%

GREBTETH

EBR

100,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

100,000

BREGEIATH

TBR

500,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1
each

500,000/ &R A

E1BTHERR
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12 KBL

i

Effective interest

held as at

frf R R i
2021 2020

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXBREBMY

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Foundation works and
ancillary services in Hong
Kong

REBETHETIRER
He 4k B I PR 7%

Trading of and leasing of
machinery and equipment
in Hong Kong

REBREEREEHH
Rk

Leasing of machinery and
equipment in Hong Kong

REBREHM L RE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P RRME

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 MELR(E)
Place of Particulars of
Incorporation and  issued share Effective interest Principal activities
Name kind of legal entity  capital held as at and place of operation
k1 B 3L e B %
£ EEBREER ERTRARFE FrisBRER TEEBREEMY
2021 2020
Indirectly held by the Company:
(Continued)
HARABERR : (8)
Sam Woo Foundation Limited Macau, limited liability 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Foundation works and
(“SWFL") company of MOP15,000 ancillary services in
each Macau
Sam Woolti £ A R 22 7] B - BB AR RBREE WRFETHETR
(rswit 1) 15,0002 T % 1) R AR AL F B AR 75
LER
AA Foundation Limited Hong Kong, limited 40,000,000 100% 100%  Foundation works and
liability company ordinary shares ancillary services in
of HK$1 each Hong Kong
SMEERRAT &R BRRA 40,000,0000 & i REEETHELR
EEVETHNER R AR AL H B AR 75
i3
Sam Woo Civil Contractors Limited Hong Kong, limited 10,000 ordinary 100% 100%  Foundation works and
liability company shares of HK$1 ancillary services in
each Hong Kong
SREATIRERDA &R BRRA 10,0008 B AR E & REBETHEATIR
1B TH B @R TR FR ALK B PR s
Sam Woo Civil Works Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Inactive
liability company of HK$1 each
=MEARERRF Bk BRAR 2R EREE TEex
1B TH B @R
Sam Woo Foundation Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Foundation works and
liability company of HK$1 each ancillary services in
Hong Kong
A TRERAH &5 ERAR RBREE REBETHETRER
1B T B @R HR ALY B AR
Sam Woo Finance Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Inactive
liability company of HK$1 each
=MEBERRA Bk BRAR 2R EREE TEXH
1B TH B @R
20215 FHR o =NEREEEERAF



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BTSRRI R
12  SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 KEAR(E&)

Particulars of
issued share

Place of

Incorporation and Effective interest Principal activities

Name kind of legal entity  capital held as at and place of operation
AR i B R
£ ZEERER BERTRAFE igsy 3§+ TEXBREENE
2021 2020
Indirectly held by the Company:
(Continued)
HEAQFEERE : (H)
Sam Woo Offshore Engineering Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary shares - 100%  Inactive
Limited liability company of HK$1 each
SMEFIRARRA BE BRAR 1REREE TEXH
BT EBR
Sam Woo Asia Development Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Inactive
Group Limited liability company of HK$1 each
CHENEREEFRAR BE BRAR 1REREE TEX%
BT ERR
Sam Woo Foundation Group Hong Kong, limited 1 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited liability company of HK$1 each
=M EEERRAF BE BRAR 1REREE TEXH
BT ERR
Redland Contractors Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Foundation works and

THEEERAR

liability company

&8 BRDA

of HK$1 each

2B BREE
TBTAEBK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

LEASES 13

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet

Right-of-use assets

Of which are: Ao

Properties LS

Machinery and equipment (Note) AR Ko 7R (BT E)
Motor vehicle A=

As at 31 March 2020, the net book value of
right-of-use assets amounted HK$16,151,000
have been pledged to secure lease liabilities of
the Group.

Lease liabilities

Of which are: B

Current lease liabilities mEBHEAE
Non-current lease liabilities FERFEEEE
Note:

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year
ended 31 March 2021 were HK$17,221,000 (2020: Nil).

HE

e P RRME

AHEREERAKEERABEA
MEENER -

(@)

REeRERBRERNS
#
EHEAE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TR TExT
13,347 3,133
- 16,086
- 65
13,347 19,284

MR2020%3A31 1 - BREF
B /416,151,00058 7T 2 & /3
BEEDKEDH  WEAXR
SEASaEZIEM -

HEEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TAETT
7,104 4,364
6,364 -
13,468 4,364

iz -

B ZE2021F3A31H IEFER
BFEHEEEA17,221,000
75 7T (20204F « 4#)
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e PR R R M

13

LEASES (Continued)

(0)

Amounts recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income

Depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$108,000 (2020: HK$454,000) have been
included in cost of sales and HK$7,023,000
(2020: HK$6,893,000) have been charged in
administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2021.

Expenses relating to short-term lease for office
and storage premises of HK$5,326,000 (2020:
HK$4,227,000) and directors’ quarters of
HK$722,000 (2020: HK$2,168,000) have been
included in administrative expenses.

The total cash outflow for leases for the year
ended 31 March 2021 was HK$14,508,000
(2020: HK$21,517,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases offices, factory premises and
staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 year to 3 years with no
extension and termination options.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions including lease payments and lease
terms.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, no lease is
committed but not yet commenced.
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HE (&)
b) REERZXRERNSHE

BLE £2021F3H31H 1E
FEME - 108,000 T
(20204 : 454,0005% 7T) HJ
FERAEEEFEDTAIH
& 5K AR | 7,023,000 T
(20204 : 6,893,000/ 7T )
EETHAZINE -

ERABRAERBEFMEZ
%2 HA7H & /Y 7 5,326,000
7T (20204F : 4,227,000/
7T) REEE S #722,000
77T (20204F : 2,168,000/%
JC) BEETAITERAX o

H £20214F3H31H LEF
E’ﬁgﬁﬁimﬁ @%
14,508,000/ 7t (20204 :
21,517,000/ 7T ) °

REBNHE
AR

SEBME AR

AEEHRERAE  BER
BEIES HEGHNATIZ
123FMEFEHRETL - I
mEHERRIEEERE -

%‘E(%?ﬂ;ﬂl%ljl EES

NIAA=E-S RN CIEES PYE TS
- EREENREEEY
iR -

R2021%F K202043 A 31
B - WEEAEERMAKRALR
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14  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 H#HEERE
Machinery Furniture
and and Motor
equipment fixtures vehicles Total
BRRZE &GRREE AE @zt

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TRET TAT

At 31 March 2019 #201943A31H
Cost B A 816,884 1,299 9,415 827,598
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (254,930) (1,082) (7,971) (263,983)
Net book amount REFE 561,954 217 1,444 563,615
Year ended 31 March 2020 H 22020538318
tEE
Opening net book amount FHEREmFE 561,954 217 1,444 563,615
Reclassified as right-of-use REREREB B
assets at the initial application LR F16HE
of HKFRS 16 BB AFERE
BE (64,256) = (130) (64,386)
Transfer from right-of-use assets BRACHAERE 47,716 = = 47,716
Additions RE 19,621 168 1,436 21,225
Write-off G (535) - (5) (540)
Disposals k= = = (63) (63)
Depreciation nE (23,054) (115) (727) (23,896)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 541,446 270 1,955 543,671
At 31 March 2020 7202063 A318
Cost XA 818,118 1,467 8,997 828,582
Accumulated depreciation 2ME (276,672) (1,197) (7,042) (284,911)
Net book amount FEFEE 541,446 270 1,955 543,671
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ202143A318
IFR
Opening net book amount FHRMFE 541,446 270 1,955 543,671
Transfer from right-of-use assets EREFEAEEE 15,978 - 49 16,027
Additions WE 11,377 148 718 12,243
Depreciation nE (26,330) (1) (7117) (27,158)
Closing net book amount FIRERFE 542,471 307 2,005 544,783
At 31 March 2021 M202143A318
Cost B 846,466 1,538 9,895 857,899
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (303,995) (1,231) (7,890) (313,116)
Net book amount REFE 542,471 307 2,005 544,783
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 14

(a) As at 31 March 2021, plant and equipment
amounting to HK$35,203,000 (2020:
HK$52,333,000) were secured for the Group’s
bank loans (Note 23(e)(ii)).

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
has exercised the purchase option to purchase
the leased assets related to machinery and
equipment amounted to HK$16,027,000 (2020:
HK$47,716,000) when the lease period was over.

15  FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 15
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Opening amount FUe
Fair value gain/(loss) ANEERE (BE)
Closing amount FREHE

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income is unlisted equity securities in
Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group holds 5% of issued
capital of Gold Champion Enterprises Limited which
is an unlisted entity principally engaged in investment
properties holding (2020: same).
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MR (E)

(a) 20214 3A31H &8 A
35,203,000/ 7T (20204 :
52,333,000/ 7T.) B # W K&
REAEASBERITERD
A (KT zE23(e)(ii)) °

(b) MHEZ=2021F38318 It
FE - -AEERBEHER
RITEBERUBARH
16,027,000 7T (20204 :
47,716,0007% 7T) B 28 1
Mz HERME -

BAFEFARMEZERAZE
BMEE

BRAFEFARMBEEBAZ KA
wE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
20,120 20,920
410 (800)
20,530 20,120

BATEAARMEERAZ SR
BERNBBZIFLEMBAES -

R2021F3A31H  AEBIFE £
BEEERAR ([£E]) B#ET
BA5% - e BABEBNEREY
R 2 IE ETE R (20204 : 4
@) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (Continued)

Management considered the fair value of the unlisted
securities mainly represented the fair values of the
investee’s investment properties, net of its net current
liabilities. These investment properties which are
situated in Hong Kong are valued by an independent
valuer, RHL Appraisal Limited, with reference to
prices realised on actual sales and/or asking prices
of comparable properties of similar size, development
scale, nature, character and locations. The valuations
have been made on the assumption that the owner sells
the investment properties on the market in their existing
state without the benefit of a cash rebate, deferred
terms contract, leaseback, joint venture, management
agreement or any other similar arrangement which
could serve to increase the value of the properties.
Management considered that the net current liabilities
approximated their fair values due to their short-term
maturities.

The fair values of financial assets through other
comprehensive income is within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy (see Note 3.3).

15

e P RRME

BAFEFARMEZERAZE
MEE(E)

BAFEFARMBEEBAZ AR
RE (%)

EEERR FLEMBHZAFE
FTEERRETREME ZAFE
(FIBRERBEEFR - ZFER
BYERMNEE - HEERBEUKR
N BRAE UE  FEACE
ML EMENEREEPERDY
Bk REBRHOBLAERK
MITHERRARABETHE-
EEDRREBAADERRET
S EHEREYEMERSOR
BLEGREH EROE  5&D
¥ ERHEREMELAREY
XEEZEURHNITR - BEE
RAmE A EF R R R M
ITERFE -

BRAFEFAREMBEZERAZ SR
BEZATFEBRATFEBRZE
=& (RHEE3.3) ©
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16 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 16
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables JE U 2 Z 58
Retention receivables JE U 1R B8 &
Trade and retention receivables EWE S HRBERRE S

Less: loss allowance (Note (b) and (c)) & : B 18 # 4 (47577 (b) % (c))

Deposits, prepayments and other Be - TR FE K H M E K

receivables (Note (a)) KA (Hit(a)
Less: non-current portion W FEENEREL 5
Current portion BN EA 28 o

Note (a): The balance mainly represents rental deposit,
prepayment for sub-contractor fee, prepayment
for plant and equipment and other miscellaneous
prepayments.

The credit period granted to trade customers other than
for retention receivables was generally ranged from
45 to 90 days. The terms and conditions in relation to
the release of retention vary from contract to contract,
which may be subject to practical completion, the expiry
of the defect liability period or a pre-agreed time period.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
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BREZRERRES  URE
% RARER AL WRKE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET F&T
94,591 172,269
83,167 89,403
177,758 261,672
(25,009) (25,009)
152,749 236,663
9,369 7,820
(2,155) (836)
7,214 6,984

Hita) mEBRIZBRESRE -
DBREEMNKIA - R

FERTRNFRIA -

BREKRBEIN  BEHEF—HKE
RKASEQORKEEH - RERE ®
MR R GERES S &M AT
Bl AIBEBGERRT - RIEET
BB R A E M BRI MR 5 2 R
Br o AEEWERA E(EARRIE
B o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 16
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date was as follows:

1 to 30 days 1Z230H
31 to 60 days 31£260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Total “ast

Retention receivables are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts. In the consolidated
balance sheet, retention receivables were classified as
current assets based on the operating cycle. The aging
of the retention receivables based on invoice date was

as follows:

Within 1 year —F A
Between 1 and 5 years —FhHF
More than 5 years HBBRAF

There is no movements in the provision for impairment
of trade and retention receivables that are assessed for
impairment.

e P RRME

BREZRERRES  URE
T-ENREREMERRE
(&)

FEUE 5 FR BRI 3 2= H M BR R
DR :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT
80,961 122,195
7,123 50,074
6,507 —
94,591 172,269

FEURE & 2 IRE B A KRR
BE - MNRREERBRA - B
REENDBRRBEE - ENEE
FHIEKRE S RIFER A HANK
RN

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$°000
TERT TAT
17,484 36,683
38,371 42,586
27,312 10,134
83,167 89,403

FHERENEEKEZRBERRE ©
BEBR AR ETAZS -
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16

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note (b)

In February 2017, SWFL, a subsidiary of the Company, has
filed a civil procedure in Macau court against a customer
to recover certain retention receivables amounted to
MOP10,447,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$10,134,000).
The First Instance Court delivered a judgement against the
claims in June 2018. An appeal was launched against such
judgement in January 2019, before the Second Instance Court
agreeing to the fact that part of the evidences submitted by
SWFL should have been considered by the First Instance
Court when it made its original judgment. After the judgment
made by the Second Instance Court, the customer lodged
a further appeal to the Court of Final Appeal in December
2019. Such appeal was denied by the Court of Final Appeal
in June 2020, and the First Instance Court issued a revised
judgment in February 2021, demanding the customer to pay
the claimed amount to SWFL. The claimed amount totaled
MOP21,277,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,639,000),
which included the abovementioned retention receivables as
well as compensation for certain variation order.

As at 31 March 2021, the customer has not yet repaid the
claimed amount to SWFL. Taking into consideration the
uncertainty surrounding the timing of the repayment as well as
the customer’s ability to repay, management did not adjust the
full provision made against the retention receivables during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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BREZRERRES  URE
TC-ENREREMERRE
(%)

Kiaz o)

R20174F2 7 - SWih & (KRR 7 B
AR EH—MLF P RRPAR IR
REX2EEF AUE10,447,00058
P (F8E M #910,134,0008 7T) Z
ETRIERBE - BV ERR
2018F6AEH BB B EEBARZH
SR TSWih & 7201941 A 5t #% #
RIEH EEF  BPIR RUART R E R
AR A BT 1 IR 98 )R B B £ = 2D
S ESWiHL E 2 R A E i o IR
WL VE L FIRTE - ZE P 12019
FI2AMBMREBEERRL#E—F
EEF o AR _EFFR20204E6 A R T
REE T K B - TR PP AR BT R
202152 AEHERT#IR - RS &
FPRISWHESNRELHE RES
A £ A21,277,0008 FF ¥ (& R
#920,689,000/ t) + R 8 4F Ll
BWRBEARE TERGTENMHE

M2021FE3H31H ZEFPH AR
SWit EEERESTE - BRI EXK
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note (c)

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, SWFL had another retention
receivable, amounted to MOP 15,335,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$14,875,000), due from another customer
which remained outstanding. The customer did not settle the
retention to the Group due to the fact that the land use rights
to the relevant construction site was lost to the Court of Final
Appeal in Macau. Management has been seeking to negotiate
with the customer for the recovery of the retention receivables
but there has not been any significant progress. As a result,
management made a full provision on this retention receivables
during year end 31 March 2019.

Taking into consideration the uncertainty surrounding the timing
of the repayment as well as the customer’s ability to repay,
management did not adjust the full provision made against the
retention receivables during the year ended 31 March 2021.

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
approximated their fair values and were denominated in HKS$.

Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade and retention
receivables and contract assets.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign
currency risk and interest risk can be found in Note 3.1.

16

e P RRME

BREZRERRES  URE
T-ENREREMERRE
(&)

i it(c)

MR20214F 202043 A31H -
SWit ZE B RIS —B2RFP &8
#15,335,00008 9 (HE R4
14,875,000/ 7T) 2 FEWIRE £ - B
BRI M AREE o ARRPIREER
HZBEPREENABZEETHA -
HERAE  ZBRPUERANEEESR
EREE - EHEE—ESKEZE
PR AKEEERERRES I
BAEMBENERE - At - ERERE
ZE2019F3A31 B It FEE ARG B E
WIRBEIEL ZRERME -

ERIEFHEMALELERENN
TEAAEZ - BEERE E202143
A318 1EFE R EF A B E K
RBSEL N 8UEE -

FEME 5 A KRB S AR E SR HE
NFEHRE - WABTTAHE -

AR K R B

AEBERBEEVHREELF
SECETERBEERE - B
ERBEZHERRESUALE
B EEAREF AR E RS
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17 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 17
LIABILITIES

Included in current assets/(liabilities) E AGRBNEE, (ARE)

are the following: HefmEmT
Contract assets (Note (i) GREE (M)
Contract liabilities (Note (i) BRBE (B 20)
Notes:

(i) Contract assets related to construction services consist
of unbilled amount resulting from construction when the
cost-to-cost method of revenues recognised exceeds
the amount billed the customer. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

(i) The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advanced
consideration received from customers.
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EHNEEREGHNEAERE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
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HEERBERIANEE
BRERAEERBELNEE
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e MR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank RITE S

Cash on hand FHEEL

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEEY

Restricted bank balances =R Hl SR 1T 45 B4

Cash and cash equivalents and BENBESCEEMAR
restricted bank balances PR SR 1T 45 £4

Maximum exposure to credit risk FrAEN R EERR

Note:

As at 31 March 2021, the restricted bank balance
represents a deposit of HK$3,192,000 (2020:
HK$3,145,000) placed by a director (Note 22).

RERASEEWURZRER

TE R
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET
187,861 207,226
60 95
187,921 207,321
3,192 3,145
191,113 210,466
191,053 210,371

Kt - KR2021F3A318 @ Z R #l
5 17 & #2 X 3,192,000/ J©
(20204 : 3,145,000/ Jt) M
—REEFEANES (W&

22) o
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18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 18 HERBFELEEYURZREIR
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES (Continued) TES(E)
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents BeNREHEEYWNUAKRTRHIET
and restricted bank balances were denominated in the HEHRMEREEEN T E¥EE :

following currencies:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
HK$ 7T 190,877 210,235
MOP e 196 109
Others Hib 40 122
191,113 210,466
19 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 19 B RO BERFEE
RESERVES
(a)  Share capital (a) g 7R
Number of
shares HK$
' &vig S Q=] BT
Ordinary Shares, authorised: ZERCGEE)
At 31 March 2020 and 720203318 &
31 March 2021 202143 A31H 4,000,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued TER(BRTRAR) :
and fully paid:
At 31 March 2020 and R2020F3 A31H &
31 March 2021 202143 A31H 1,680,000,000 4,200,000

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

19 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 19
RESERVES (Continued)

BRA - RADEE R B ()

(o)  Share premium and reserves b) BB ERFEE
Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
Share income fair Other Retained
premium  value reserve reserves earnings Total
RATEHA
LR 0N
LEHEE
RfEE  ZATEERE EHRE RBEH a3t
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000
ThT T T TET THT
(Notg)
W)
At 31 March 2019 H201953A31A 194,087 1,170 10,500 415959 621,716
Changes in accounting polces LR £ = = = (207) (20)
At 1 Apr 2019 festated) 019541 (EE7) 194,087 1,170 10,500 415,752 621,509
Proft for the year EEET - - - 73018 13,018
Fair vlug losses on fivancial assets at FVOC BAFETARMEANAL
tREEZNTERE - (800) - - (800)
At 31 March 2020 H00E3A81A 194,087 30 10,500 488,710 693,721
Loss for he year EEEE (38,751) (3,751)
Fair value gains on financial assets at FVOC BATEALHZENAL
SREE N TEAG - 40 - - 40
Fingl dhidends relating to the year ended BBERN0EIRSALER
31 March 2020 (ots 10) HRBRE K1) - - - (83,600) (33,600)
At 31 March 2021 A021%3A31A 194,087 780 10,500 421,419 626,786
20215 FH o =HEEKEHRDA @
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19 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND
RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Share premium and reserves (Continued)
Note:

Other reserves of the Group represented the difference
between the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation over the nominal value
of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange
thereof and the difference between the aggregation of
the nominal value of the share capital of SWBP and
SWEE acquired over the nominal value of the share
capital of SW (BVI) issued in exchange thereof pursuant
to the reorganisation completed in 2003.

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal

authority.
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTER ARG
Deferred income tax assets RIEMSMREE

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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A~ BRADIEE KRB ()

(b) f& 10 % B M (&)
et -

AEERHMFEERRIEESR
Fr UG BE BV B B A R Y B AR = 12
BN ABBRAREITARA
AIRAEEMN=EEBIER
20034 55 Ak Ky = 48 FT BB A
= 0 b B B3 = A0 B9 A% A
FERAF - SR ARIRERIR
AN T 3 1T 89 = AM(BVI) AR AR &
BEREEE -

IS Fr &8

ELEMSHREERBERAJRA
o8 il #0174 N 55 B HA AR 1R & A B AD
MR ENE  BECEMEHE
R — F ER % R AR B B T DA 8K o

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FT#ET F&T
(51,821) (56,423)
1,408 2,877
(50,413) (53,546)
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement on the deferred income tax account was
as follows:

20

e P RRME

WA PS8 (2)

EEFEHERRZESWT

Balance at 1 April

Recognised in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive TR

income (Note 9)

Balance at 31 March

R4F1E 2 #EER

MIA31H Z ik ek

REa2ERERA
(#t:£9)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, were as

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TATT
(53,546) (44,515)
3,133 (9,031)
(50,413) (53,546)

BEERBRBEMEENES (LT
ZRMRAMBREEEERRAZE
EBREEH) T

follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

Balance at 1 April 2019
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020

Recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2021

RS EE
Accelerated
tax
depreciation
INRFIEIT &
HK$'000
TH&T
R2019F4 A1 8 2 46k 91,529
RiZEE2mE KSR AER
(3,265)
R2020F3 A31H &
2020F4 A1 8 z &% 88,264
Rirs 2 E K =R ARR
91)
R2021F3 A31H 2 & & 88,173
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20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets

Balance at 1 April 2019 R2019F4 18 2 Hifk
Recognised in the consolidated RiFE 2 ERERAER
statement of comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2020 and R2020%3A318 &
1 April 2020 20204 F1H 2 B
Recognised in the consolidated Rire2ERER AR

statement of comprehensive income

Balance at 31 March 2021 202137318 2 &%
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20 EEFEH(E)

BIEFTIS B E

Unrealised Tax
profit losses Total
REREF BHEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL AT FTAEL
8,547 38,467 47,014
(7,040) (5,256) (12,296)
1,507 33,211 34,718
(1,507) 4,549 3,042
- 37,760 37,760
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a subsidiary of
the Company has received a letter from Inland Revenue
Department of Hong Kong (“IRD”), where the IRD
disagreed on certain depreciation allowances claimed in
relation to the years of assessment from 2012/2013 to
2015/2016. The subsidiary is at a taxable loss position
and is entitled to lodge a formal objection towards
the IRD’s assessment within one month after the IRD
issues a tax assessment as and when the subsidiary
turns to a taxable income position. According to the
IRD’s calculation, the tax losses brought forward will
decrease by HK$32,738,000. The corresponding impact
on the deferred tax liabilities arising from accelerated
tax depreciation as at 31 March 2021 would decrease
by HK$5,402,000, whilst deferred tax assets arising
from tax losses as at 31 March 2021 would also
decrease by the same amount. These impacts have
not been adjusted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements as at 31 March 2021 because the directors
do not agree with the IRD’s assessment that such
depreciation allowances should be disallowed. The
Group is in the process of seeking advices from their tax
consultants as to how to take further action in respect of
this letter and continues to provide for deferred taxation
based on management’s best estimates.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. As at 31 March 2021, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
HK$38,418,000 (2020: HK$3,897,000) that can be
carried forward to offset against future taxable income,
of which an amount of HK$844,000, HK$752,000 and
HK$1,311,000 will expire in 2022, 2023 and 2024
respectively (2020: HK$844,000 and HK$752,000 will
expire in 2022 and 2023 respectively ) and an amount
of HK$35,512,000 (2020: HK$2,301,000) has no expiry
date.

20

e P RRME

EREFRGH ()
BEELEFRSREE (&)

REE2021F3A31BILFE &
AR —HNB AR EER BRI
BUBBR]) RE - EBEHRERH A
B2 B A RIF2012/2013F E &
2015/2016F EM B FERFA
FIHERTRE - ZMBRAREER
JERTEIBARRE - ME HE SRR
MU ARRERT - BI B RIE
HEFF 2 — 8 A AL TR ER
RE - RBEHBEBOE - &8N
Tt TEE5 1R 15 Rk 032,738,000 7T ©
R2021F3A31H » F IR BT
EMEEECEHBEEBRNHESE
18 8 425,402,000/ 7T+ 1 1A2021
FATHAMIBBIEMEERE
ERMIBEENGINRAER ST -
HRESUTREHKEBIELD
FH RAETEERERATERTH
B RUNERETECASEEE
20213 A31 HWAR & B 53R K +
T o AEEHE EFCRFISEE R
B RUBZ R HEGE — P17 -
WHEREEEENREGFHE
EBIBFTREBE -

fisd BT 375 38 2K 2R & AR 5 4 A1) 2 3R AR
AHIENZ  AIBAEENTIES
BHERIELES R EE - 12021
F3A31H - NEE A48 B
RRERRIWMANRERT BB
18 %) 538,418,0007% 7T (20204 :
3,897,000/ 7T ) + H F1844,000/%
7T~ 752,000/ 7T 2 1,311,000 7T
7 Bl # 720224 ~ 20234 2024
F B HY (20204 : 844,000/ 7T K&
752,000% 7t 7 Bl 1§ 120224 &k
2023 E| Hj) - 35,512,000 7T
(20204 : 2,301,000/ Jt) I £ 3
R

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT
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21

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, 21
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables
Retention payables

Total trade and retention payables
Accruals and other payables (Note)

Note:

e E 53R
ERNRE S

BNESFAMRESHER
&t R IR I Ho A e 5B
(Ktez)

The amounts mainly represent accruals and other

payables for constructing work-in-progress, wages,

legal and professional fees and transportation costs.

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on

invoice date was as follows:

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days

61 to 90 days

91 to 180 days

181 to 365 days
More than 365 days

SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

0%30H
31£60H
61290H
91&180H
181%365H
8 38365 H

e ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EREZRERRES B

TR R H fth FE A IR

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
46,581 102,976
12,346 21,323
58,927 124,299
18,395 24,655
77,322 148,954

Hiat: REFRIEZ/RBEERT
BHe EERhIFXERH
18 B PR AN BO B AT R R B A R

fH3R0R -

e B 2R IAR B R A MM AR

DT :
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHE T FHT
17,596 93,074
8,292 8,962
3,030 =
1,661 =
15,151 16
851 924
46,581 102,976
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables
were classified as current liabilities. The aging of the
retention payables was as follows:

Within 1 year —F RN
Between 1 and 5 years —FERF
Over 5 years HEF

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximated their fair value and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP SB[
Others Hih

21

e MR

EREZRERRES B
B R H AR RRIE (F)

REREEARBRRAN  ERE
DEAEREBEE - BNRE %EDHE
BT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
1,006 7,516
7,246 13,613
4,094 194
12,346 21,323

BNESRBERFESHEREE
BHENFEMES XA TIEREF

g :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TET
54,360 120,144
4,431 3,601
136 554
58,927 124,299

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT
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22

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

(@)

Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, Mr. Lau
Chun Ming (“Mr. CM Lau”), a director of the
Company, irrevocably undertakes to deposit
a sum of HK$20,000,000 into a bank account
under the name of the Group for the purpose
of indemnifying the Group against any claims,
challenges and rejections from the Hong Kong
tax authority and/or Macau tax authority and
costs incurred in relation to the Group’s tax
liabilities arising up to October 2014.

In the event that no claim in relation to taxation is
instituted by both Macau tax authority and Hong
Kong taxation authority against the Group within
seven years after the date on which dealings in
the shares on the Main Board first commenced,
i.e. 16 October 2014 (“the Listing Date”), the
balance shall be released and returned to Mr.
CM Lau on the seventh anniversary of the Listing
Date.

In June 2017, the final and conclusive tax
assessment and final tax demand note for the
years 2013 and 2014 were issued by the tax
authority in Macau, indicating that the Group had
no outstanding amount on the required tax for
the years of assessment of 2013 and 2014 in
Macau; the Macau tax assessment for the years
2013 and 2014 have been concluded, final and
settled. There is no tax liability so far demanded
by Hong Kong tax authority in respect of the
transactions and income contemplated under the
Machinery Lease Agreement and the Machinery
Agency Agreement.

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BN —-—RESFE

(@)

BEBERE  AQRES
24 B %5 A 7 A] Bl AR
BRERNEEHE BT
PR 8 R PI B 35 20 P B
BEMERER HRAEKE -
LA 2 72N &2 B 8 2201410
RAEENTE B EMEHEEK
K- MAEEZTRITERRS
£ A 17 3%20,000,0007% 7T °

IR BXHIERERE
= 2 B (B12014F10816H
(TEmHEBD)ELEEFEA -
R H S B0 P R B BB EB
FIME S AR R 42 (1 B A A
BWERER - BIBRERR LT
HEBELHAFTE BB BRR
BT RIRALAE -

201746 H + B T F4 1% &F
F9 B 2 120134 20144
B AR RORTE 4 FE R R AR AR AT
MBME  EAEEWER
{8 12 §938 F920134F %2014
FAMFEERMTOBIE M
B F920134F K 20144 5E %
Bkt mEREZN &
BHRESWERKREE
W R R EREE TR
5 R B Sk Uk A ] R
I8 o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

In July 2017, the Company partially return to Mr.
CM Lau HK$17,000,000 out of the deposit of
HK$20,000,000 pursuant of Deed of Indemnity
together with all the bank interests earned up to
12 July 2017 amounting to HK$1,006,000 in view
of the updated tax positions mentioned above
and the estimate on maximum exposure made by
the tax advisers of the Company. The remaining
HK$3,000,000 represented the estimated
remaining tax exposure of the Group.

The balance of amount due to a director
is secured by restricted bank balances of
HK$3,192,000 (2020: HK$3,145,000) and
interest bearing at effective interest rate of 1.47%
(2020: 2.24%).

The remaining balance of HK$50,000,000 of
amount due to a director is for operational use,
denominated in HK$, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

e P RRME

22 REN-REBXREGE)

(@)

(%)

BB bt ol MRS AR
AN AR R R E I B _ERR
[2, B fiy 5T - 201757 A -
RNAT R RIREA e £ FER
{E 224 18 20,000,000/ 7T
T 3 #917,000,00078 JTiE
BZEGFTREE2017F7H
12 A BT R EL A — Y8R 1T 17 3K
# 51,006,000/ 7t ° & T~
3,000,000/ 7T 5 2~ & & &9
HEFR T HERERE

BN —RERRIBZEHH
PR 1 88 17 45 #23,192,000
7 7t (20204 : 3,145,000
BIT) I WIRE R A X
1.47% (20204F : 2.24%) &f
B o

#4%E A50,000,0007 JT K fE
N—REBERBENIEER
EB A BERABTEE
BEIRE - 28 MEENRE

o

i
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23 BORROWINGS

Non-current
Long-term bank loans

Current
Short-term bank loans
Current portion of long-term bank
loans due for repayment within
one year
Bank overdraft

Total borrowings

R
RHISRITER

=3
)L

REHERITE R

B EA &R 7>
RITEX

{8 RAB R

(@) The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(i) Bank loans

The maturity of bank loans are as follows:

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 5 years

—F R
—EME
—FhRE

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021

N"otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET F&T
2,534 10,045
76,699 100,903
7,444 8,534
19,834 -
103,977 109,437
106,511 119,482

@ EXNIBBERET :

(i) RITEH

RITEFRH B BB R

LI
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT TET
103,977 109,437
2,534 7,596
- 2,449
106,511 119,482
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e MR

BORROWINGS (Continued)

(0)

The weighted average interest rates were as
follows:

REHIRITE X
RHIRITER

Short-term bank loans
Long-term bank loans

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
EUR

IR
TN

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximated their fair value as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

23

(b) IEFHFEDT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
1.7% 3.6%
2.5% 4.3%
© AKREEROEREELT]
BWEHE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THET
106,511 110,830
- 8,652
106,511 119,482

0 HBRFBFEITEA &
EENEREAEREAT

(EREESR
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23

24

25

BORROWINGS (Continued)

(e) The Group’s banking facilities are subject to
annual review and the utilised facilities comprise:

Eiigi
Eg i

Secured
Unsecured

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any
capital commitment (2020: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has given
guarantees on performance bonds of HK$17,751,000,
HK$49,930,000 and HK$6,916,000 (2020:
HK$17,751,000, HK$16,500,000 and HK$49,930,000),
respectively, in respect of three construction contracts
of the Group in its ordinary course of business (2020:
three).
released in accordance with the terms of the respective

The performance bonds are expected to be

construction contracts.

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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25

B (&)

e AKRENRITEEAEBFE

W EBAREREUTE
I8 :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER THETT
9,978 18,579
96,533 100,903
106,511 119,482

i

R202143A31H » NEE I &L
Al B AN HE (20204 : &) o

HREE

R2021F3A318 - AEE G
AEBERAREBHERAN=ZIEZE
FEE 4 (2020 : =18) B E LR
EK 1E &R 9 Bl A17,751,0007%8
JC ~ 49,930,0007% 7t }6,916,000
7 7T (20204F : 17,751,000/ 7t
16,500,000/ 7T % 49,930,000/%5
TC) © %R AR TR E AR R AR
FE R EE S KRG TR BR bR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Fin

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26
OF CASH FLOWS

(@)

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to

ancial Statements

e P RRME

ReRERERWE

(@  BRETSBiAT (B18) 6 A R

net cash (used in)/generated from operations: REER (FTR) /FBERE
HEE ) SR
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BT SR AT (BE),
ikl (36,838) 83,679
Depreciation of plant and equipment  ## &R EITE
(Note 14) (Btit14) 27,158 23,896
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (B FAEEEITE (417113
(Note 13) 7,131 7,347
Gain on disposal of plant and oS A R B Y Uk 2
equipment - (5)
Write-off of plant and equipment Il S5 e Ak T2 R R
(Note 6) (Hi:t6) - 540
Finance income (Note 8) B WA (H1728) (1,397) (2,287)
Finance costs (Note 8) S ER (41:78) 1,386 2,424
Net exchange differences FERER (192) (645)
(2,752) 114,949
Changes in working capital: BEERED
— trade and retention receivables — U E 5 I &
RE® 83,914 (190,805)
— deposits, prepayments and other ~ —#% - BB K&
receivables H 8 U 5118 (1,549) (210)
— contract assets —EHEE 379 8,237
— trade and retention payables —ERESRER
®BEE (65,372) 89,466
— accruals and other payables —FEFT A K&
H b & 15 5K I8 (6,260) 14,734
— contract liabilities — A48 E (11,366) (22,945)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE (FR) /B3
operations BE 25 (3,006) 18,426
20215 FHR o =NEREEEERAF
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(o)

RERERERWE(F)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, (b) REZEHERERT HE
proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment B ERENRERIBR
comprise: T
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T T
Net book amount (Note 74) BRTEFE (Mt 14) - 63
Gain on disposal of plant and o B A R B Y IR a
equipment (Note 6) (fiit6) - 5
Cash proceeds from sales of plant HEMREEENIRS
and equipment B8 38 - 68

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Net debt reconciliation

This section sets out the reconciliation of liability

from financing activity for each of the years

26 HEBRTRERMEE)

(©

FET AR

AEEY 252 % F R
BEBELZABEMNEE -

presented.
Liabilties from financing activities
BEEDEL /AR
Obligations
Cash and cash Lease  under finance Short-term Long-term
equivalents liabilities leases bank loans bank loans Total
Rek HE ok &5
REEEN HERE HERE FAER FAER it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
As at 1 April 2019 R2019%4A1H 196,964 - (9,151) (79,910) (6,837) 101,066
Adoption of HKFRS 16 FVE BB B &% 28
516% = (18979) 9,151 - - (9,828)
196,964 (18979) - (79,910) (6,837) 91,238
Cash flows: B
- Principal element of ~ ~REMFALH(A
lease payments - 14,615 - - - 14,615
-Drawdownof bank  —BERETER
loans - - - (290,144) (19,961) (310,105)
-Repayment of bank ~ ~EBRAER
loans - - - 268,506 8,219 276,725
-Increaseincashand ~ ~B 2 REELEEY
cash equivalents = 10,357 - - - - 10,357
Non-cash flows: FEE
- Foreign exchange —NEBE
adjustments - - - 645 - 645
As at 31 March 2020 R2020%3A31H 207,321 (4,364) - (100,903 (18,679) 83,475
2021555 ZMEESEFRD R
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26 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 26 HmEBERERMTE(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

()  Net debt reconciliation (Continued) () FEBHEKGE)
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
HEbEE HEEBELCER
Cash and

cash Bank Lease  Short-term  Long-term  Amount due
equivalents Overdraft liabilities ~ bank loans  bank loans  to directors Total

BeR ik R Fft
RELE RTEX HERE RITER RTER EEL st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TRr TR TEn TEn TEn TEr

Asat 1 April 2020 202054718 207,321 - (4,364) (100,908) (18,579) (3,145) 80,330
Cash flows: E
- Principal -RERZASE
clement of lease ~ Zf3
payments - - 8,117 - - - 8,117
-Drawdownof  —BERHTER
bank loans - - - (248,294) - - (248,294)
-Repaymentof  -EEHTER
bank loans - - - 272,306 8,601 - 280,907
-Drawdown from - —ZEZHY
a director iE - - - - - (50,000) (50,000)

-Decreasen -BAREAS
cashandcash  EWIAA
equivalents (19,400) (19,834) - - - - (39,234)

Non-cash flows: ~ #&#j%

- Foreign —INEFE

exchange

adjustments - - - 192 - - 192
- Adoltion - lease  —FE—THE - - (17,221) - - - (17,221)
- Interest -FER%

exXpenses - - - - - (47 (47

Asat31 March  #2021F3A318
2021 187,921 (19,834) (13,468) (76,699) (9,978) (58,192) 14,750

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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e P RRME

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 EEALTRS
Related parties are those parties that have the ability RAEE AN LB R iR H - H[E 4
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence LB F7 5 ] S H b Al SRR E
over the other party in holding power over the investee; THEEINALTITEEATE NN
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its AL BEAESZAEEHSEFE
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use B AR R BT TSN
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the T+ AR AESWRETNENT
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be ZINBELRSENAL - XHF
related if they are subject to common control or joint 2= | Sl Bk S PR B B9 A T IR AR /5
control. Related parties may be individuals or other AT o B AT AEA S EA
entities. BB
(a) The directors of the Company are of the view that (a) ARNBEERE - NHAF
the following companies were related parties that EREANEFETRFHE

had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party

BBALERE

Mr. CM Lau
23R AP 5t A&
Cheer Crown Limited

EERARLIQA

Cheer Profit International
Enterprise Limited

ENBEEREEEBRA A

Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited

E2RERERER QA

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RAMEERAF
Healthy World Investment Limited

REREBRAR
Long Ascent Development Limited

RAZERARAA
Sky Ease Holdings Limited

LA SRR AL

Relationship with the Group
BEAKBEMNER

Director of the Company

ARRIEE

A related company beneficially wholly owned by Mr. CM
Lau

HERALEE 2 EEREANER QA

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKBETESERARGKKEZEREG N AT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKBETESERARGKKEZERGHNBE QT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKBETESRARGKKEZERGHNBE QT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HAKBETEZ2EHEGNEH QT

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HAKBETEZ2EHEGNEH QT

A related company wholly owned by Mr. CM Lau

HERAEE2EHFEE QT

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT
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27

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 27 BBALTRES(H)
(b)  Transactions (o) X 5

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties
at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

Paid to related parties: EEBALRE:

Rental expenses to Cheer Crown INFEZHR AR
Limited (Note (i) and (iv)) MeRX (0L 0v)

Rental expenses to East Ascent IRTFRACEBRAT

Enterprise Limited (Note (i) and (iv)) WHSFEIZ (MR iv)
Rental expenses to Cheer Profit IRFEFMBERCEER
International Enterprise Limited NAMBAEAY
(Note (i) and (iv)) (BiEt R i)
Rental expenses to Long Ascent IRFRAZEERDA
Development Limited (Note (ii) and (iv)) @& (B2 0)%(iv)

Rental expenses to Cheer Wealth IRHTERREBRERAR
International Development Limited ARAIMEERX
(Note (i) and (iv)) (Bt (i) &)

Rental expenses to Healthy World INTFREREFGRAT

Investment Limited (Note (i) and (v)) MBS FE T (A2 kW)

Expense payable to a related party: BB ALY :
Interest expense payable to a director RN EEF B F %
(Note (i) (B &)

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021

T35 :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TERT TAET
720 2,160

15 46

15 46

200 600

292 876

200 600

47 70
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e P RRME

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 27 BEBALRS (&)
(o)  Transactions (Continued) ) R5(#E)
Notes: Bt -
(i) Rental expenses for storage of machinery and 0] FA B TF P o K2 =%
equipment are based on terms pursuant to the WHESFAZHERE
tenancy agreements as mutually agreed by the & 5 A 1 E B
relevant parties. AR
(ii) Rental expenses for directors’ quarters are (ii) REESEE=NE2
based on terms pursuant to the tenancy A DEREBSH
agreements as mutually agreed by the relevant H 7 1% 7E 7 49 /9 15
parties. Ko
(i) Interest expense was payable to a director, (iii) AMEF X TR ER —
Mr. CM Lau, in respect of the amount due to a 5 = SRR e 1 B
director (Note 27(d)). = 2R A8 5t & (Y &
27(d)) °
(iv) These related party transactions also constitute (iv) ZEBBMALTZ M
continuing connected transactions as defined in WA £ AR RIS 14A
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. EATRZIFERE
LR
v) This relating party transaction also constitutes (v) ZEMBALTRZ N
continuing connected transaction as defined R £ R Al E14A
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but its EAERZIGERE
size is such that the transaction was exempt R BZEXS
from the disclosure and shareholders’ approval HAE BRAEN
requirements for continuing connected AR R A E R E
transaction. MIFERERS °
(c)  Key management compensation () EEEEAERM

Key management
(executive and non-executive) of the Group.
The compensation paid or payable to key
management for employee services is disclosed

TEEEABBEASEE
=BT RIERTT) - FIEE
RECNRENTERER
A BHOFRBAR P 5E30(2) 5 ©

includes directors

in Note 30(a).

(d)  Balance - non-trade (d #eR—3EEH
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TH&T
Payable to a director: B —REERHE:
Mr. CM Lau (Note 22) 2IMREA & A& (M1 7722) 53,192 3,145
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 28 RAERAQT

Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the Group,
which is a company indirectly owned by a discretionary
trust, the beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So.

& 1% 8 37 &Silver Bright Holdings
Limited ( — R R & & 5 22 B & 51
BB R R BEREE R REER
AR ZATIHNARBHRLZT AT
m AN RREGTEREESR -

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT
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29

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

29 AFRRANEEABERERRGEZD

2021 2020
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 7E FBT TATT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRARIMIEE 5,927 5,927
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TE SR 28 28
Amount due from a subsidiary W —EH B A
E L] 197,936 199,175
Restricted bank balances PR R 1T A5 B 3,192 3,145
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 531 482
Income tax recoverable A YL Bl AT 70 -
20,757 202,830
Total assets EE#E 207,684 208,757
Equity R
Capital and reserves EAXRREE
Share capital [N 4,200 4,200
Reserves w8 (a) 200,281 201,318
Total equity ERBERE 204,481 205,518
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a director BN —RESFIE 3,192 3,145
Accruals and other payables JE T FRIB M H A
JE 5 3RIE 11 94
Total liabilities aEes 3,203 3239
Total equity and liabilities EakBEHAE 207,684 208,757

RRaWEEAEBERED R20214F
6H23BHEZES S E > WA T ALK

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 23 June 2021 and were signed on

its behalf. REZEo
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
2|4 52 RE &
Director Director
o= EZE

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a):

Reserve movement of the Company

At 31 March 2019
Profit for the year

At 31 March 2020
Profit for the year

Final dividends relating to the year &REI& Z£20203831H

ended 31 March 2020 (Note 10)

At 31 March 2021

R2019%F3A31H
FEHF

7202063731 H
EREA

EEEMRBRE
(HiiE10)

R2021%F3A31H

e P RRME

29 AXLQARANEEEERRREESD
(%)
Kiit(a) -
ARENREEE
Share Other Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R 175 8 Hitofd RERF Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET FET
194,087 5,927 845 200,859
= = 459 459
194,087 5,927 1,304 201,318
- - 32,563 32,563
- - (33,600) (33,600)
194,087 5,927 267 200,281

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference

between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over

the nominal value of the share capital of the Company

issued in exchange thereof.

N B) B H At 7 48 BT KR = 0
BV)MEEFEBBAR A AR
BEEEEMBETRAEmEBENZERE -

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EERAIEER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEMe
The remuneration of each director of the RAAFREESZHM < H T
Company is set out below: R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
BEN1FIANALEE

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary  Directors’  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

Exm

Biheity
ik ¢ BMERL  ETEE  FHNEXR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL TER TER TER TERL

Executive directors HTES

Mr. CM Lau? B iRAA L A - 797 66 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok 2R B % - 840 70 600 - 1,510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARRTE - 840 70 600 - 1,510
Ms. Leung Lai So 2BHLT - 456 38 324 - 818
Independent BUkHTES

non-executive directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Tt 245

Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum KEHREE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBEL 240 - - - - 240

720 2,933 244 2,167 - 6,064
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EEFEALERE)
(Continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ E=Z=Me#E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020
HE2020E3AIALER

Employer's

contribution

Discretionary Directors”  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus quarters scheme Total

E*m

Rirestal
we ¢  BERA  EZEE fLOEX @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TETL TR TATL TAT TATL TATL

Executive directors HrEs

Mr. CM Lau* B eA 4 ¢ - 797 66 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok* 2R Bl % A - 840 70 600 - 1,510
Mr. Lau Chun Ka be Vi — 840 70 600 - 1,510
Ms. Leung Lai So PEHETT - 456 38 325 - 819
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Tt 2%

Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum RERLE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Amold EXBAE 240 - - - - 240

720 2,933 244 2,168 - 6,005
& Chairman # FE
* Chief Executive Officer * 1T 4a

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

30

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the

companies how comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office;
(i) received or paid emoluments in respect of
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking; or (iii) waived or has agreed to waive

any emolument (2020: same).

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive
any retirement benefits during the year ended 31

March 2021 (2020: same).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31

March 2021 (2020: same).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2021, no
consideration was paid by the company to third
parties for making available directors’ services

(2020: same).

@ SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED e ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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EEEARER (F)

EEMe (&)

RS REAZFEEER/AR
SEEER HEFHAKHE
ETERRNEEAALKE
YR B B < o

KB E2021F3H31H IEF
ER - BEKRQGES))
B2 X2 B W ER 5 32 AT A T B
Sl ()=l R =B NN =1
E A B FrAME =S AR
USRS E RS ¢ 3k
(i) E KR B REE A S
(20204 : #H[A) °

BE=ZRAKER

HE2021FE38318 I FE
1o 4 2 =5 O U B EK 15 Uk B
ERR K& F) (20204 : 48
A) e

EEZBEBEAN

HE2021F3A31B ILFE
BB E B WE 3k i R ER
1 {a] Bf B8t 2 F) (20204F : 48
@) °

REREEREMAE=7
S ZRE

B £2021F3A31H L F
B ARARWEFERES
R %5 0 1R (171 88 = 5 S P4
{8 (20204 : HHR) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

©

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and controlled entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2020: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2020: same).

e P RRME

30 EEFEALERE)

BARAES  ZEHIEEA
ERRNEREEREHNE
RMBUER - ARBRZ
FATHEMRZNER

#H £2021F3H31H LEF
B WERES - ZEHE
EANBERERBEBETRE
EHERREUER - UK
BRZEATHEMRZ S
(20204 : HHRA)

EERNRD - RPFHEHN
BERED

B 47 & B 7% R M 27 A
BEEI  RERKFAE
R HEARRMES—
FEINBARRBEFTEER
BMERAEFEAEDZAEAR
RAXEBEBNEARS &
BENM B K& (20204 © 48
@) e

2021FFsR o =FEEEEFRAT



k
Five Year Financial Summary

LEHBERE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities AEERARAETREEND FIEEE
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as LREE BEUARESEMET -
follows.

Year ended 31 March
HZ3A31BLLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Results E FHET FA T TAT FAB T TAT

Revenue WA 356,211 916,831 452,268 518,479 817,682

Gross (loss)/profit (E£18) =7 (4,053) 126,666 4,382 44,045 145,225

(Loss)/profit before & B 15 %4 B

income tax (FB518) /5% F (36,838) 83,679 (57,497 5,625 91,215
Income tax credit/ FTEfiiEse,/

(expense) (AX) 3,087  (10,661) 7,127 (106)  (12,235)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(FE),/

kil (33,751) 73,018 (50,370) 5,519 78,980

As at 31 March
M3A31H

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TR TET TAExT TAET TExT

Assets BE

Non-current assets ERBEE 582,223 586,788 595,180 608,385 654,959
Current assets mEEE 351,146 456,582 262,754 385,418 551,115
Total assets BEERE 933,369 1,043,370 857,934 993,803 1,206,074
Liabilities =L

Non-current liabilities ErmEBAaE 60,719 69,613 59,537 78,281 127,437
Current liabilities mEBE 241,664 275,830 172,481 229,802 382,406
Total liabilities BEAHE 302,383 345,443 232,018 308,083 509,843
Total equity ERBE 630,986 697,927 625,916 685,720 696,231
Note: Hiat -

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial P ET A B SEZTFREK A —ZP
statements. o
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